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OUR MISSION
THE MISSION OF THE SUSTAINABILITY ACCOUNTING 

STANDARDS BOARD (SASB) FOUNDATION IS TO ESTABLISH 

INDUSTRY-SPECIFIC DISCLOSURE STANDARDS ACROSS 

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL, AND GOVERNANCE TOPICS 

THAT FACILITATE COMMUNICATION BETWEEN COMPANIES 

AND INVESTORS ABOUT FINANCIALLY MATERIAL, 

DECISION-USEFUL INFORMATION.



Global Foundation Assets 
$1.5 trillion 

Global Impact Investments
$502 billion  

Global Assets Under Management 
$79.2 trillion 

OUR VISION
THE SASB FOUNDATION ENVISIONS AN INVESTMENT 

UNIVERSE IN WHICH A SHARED UNDERSTANDING 

OF SUSTAINABLE BUSINESS PRACTICES ENABLES 

BOTH COMPANIES AND INVESTORS TO MAKE MORE 

INFORMED DECISIONS THAT DRIVE IMPROVED LONG-

TERM OUTCOMES FOR NOT ONLY BUSINESSES AND THEIR 

SHAREHOLDERS, BUT ALSO FOR THE GLOBAL ECONOMY 

AND SOCIETY AT LARGE. 

CLIMATE CHANGE | POPULATION GROWTH 
RESOURCE CONSTRAINTS | TECHNOLOGICAL INNOVATION 
GLOBALIZATION | ECONOMIC INEQUALITY | URBANIZATION



Global Foundation Assets 
$1.5 trillion 

Global Impact Investments
$502 billion  

Global Assets Under Management 
$79.2 trillion 

Global foundation assets are equal to 
roughly 2 percent of global assets under 
management—or roughly equivalent to 
the area of the Earth’s surface covered by 
the United States alone. Meanwhile, global 
impact investing assets are equal to roughly 
two-thirds of one percent of global assets—
or the same as the surface area of India alone. 

Large-scale challenges call for large-
scale solutions. By helping identify the 
economic upside of addressing critical 
global challenges, SASB mobilizes markets, 
facilitates capital formation, and unlocks an 
unprecedented level of impact.

For companies, investors, and broader society, economic prosperity in the 
21st century will require transformative change at a scale that cannot be 
financed by governments and civil society alone. Now more than ever, the 
opportunity is within reach to unleash the power of financial markets to 
address global environmental, social, and market challenges for mutual 
benefit. By aligning market signals with sustainable economic growth, we 
can build a future in which gains for one catalyze gains for all. 

SOURCES: HARVARD KENNEDY SCHOOL – HAUSER INSTITUTE FOR CIVIL SOCIETY AT THE CENTER FOR PUBLIC LEADERSHIP, GLOBAL PHILANTHROPY REPORT (APRIL 2018); GLOBAL IMPACT INVESTING 
NETWORK, SIZING THE IMPACT INVESTING MARKET (APRIL 2019); THE BOSTON CONSULTING GROUP, GLOBAL ASSET MANAGEMENT 2018 – THE DIGITAL METAMORPHOSIS (JULY 2018). 

CLIMATE CHANGE | POPULATION GROWTH 
RESOURCE CONSTRAINTS | TECHNOLOGICAL INNOVATION 
GLOBALIZATION | ECONOMIC INEQUALITY | URBANIZATION

Global Assets Under Management  
$79.2 trillion 

Global Foundation Assets  
$1.5 trillion 

Global Impact Investments 
$502 billion  
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Our work at the Sustainability Accounting Standards Board (SASB) Foundation 
is rooted in the idea that global capital markets are unmatched in their ability to 
grease the wheels for progress. At the same time, we recognize they can only do 
so when they know where to apply the grease. Existing market infrastructure was 
never designed to account for 21st century challenges such as climate change, 
resource constraints, population growth, globalization, and technological inno-
vation, among others. That’s why SASB is working to modernize that infra-
structure, starting with the codification of our standards last November. Today, 
our goal is to ensure SASB’s standards evolve in a way that enables markets to 
allocate financial capital to its best, most sustainable users, thereby supporting a 
more robust and resilient economy. 

Achieving that goal starts with companies and investors. In this Annual Report 
for 2018 and look at our work in 2019, you’ll read about the rapidly growing 
number of companies across nearly every industry and continent that have begun 
to use SASB standards in their core communications with investors. You’ll also 
read about how the standards have been embraced by the global investment 
community—including the 44 (and counting) members of our Investor Advisory 
Group (IAG), who collectively manage more than US$33 trillion. These organiza-
tions support SASB’s work because of our focus on financial materiality, the rigor 
of our due process, and the opportunity to help shape the standards through 
ongoing market consultation, including with our Standards Advisory Group (SAG).

You’ll also learn how SASB standards are becoming further embedded in 
market infrastructure as we respond to demand for supporting resources like 
our Engagement Guide, educational opportunities like our Fundamentals of 
Sustainability Accounting (FSA) credential, and licensing our IP to power products 
such as State Street Global Advisors’ new R-Factor scoring system. These tools 
and resources don’t only promote more effective reporting; they incentivize more 
sustainable performance—which, after all, is what companies, investors and 
society truly care about.

Spurred by SASB’s work in 2018 and beyond, these developments have facilitated 
a critically important dialogue between companies and investors about environ-
mental, social, and governance topics that materially impact financial perfor-
mance. By opening a new line of communication, SASB standards help both the 
users and providers of financial capital manage the existing and rapidly evolving 
risks and opportunities they face. They help markets more efficiently price those 
risks and opportunities. And they help deliver environmental and social outcomes 
that are mutually beneficial not just for companies and their shareholders, but for 
the world at large.

Sincerely,

JANINE GUILLOT 
CEO of the SASB Foundation

LETTER 
FROM THE 
CEO
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Without question, 2018 was a pivotal year for SASB. In the not-too-distant future, 
we hope it will also be recognized as a pivotal year for global capital markets. The 
release of our industry standards last November not only marked the culmination of 
six years of work, it provided a starting point for the next phase of our efforts and 
for those of broader markets.

A rapidly growing number of companies, investors, and other market participants 
around the world are using SASB standards in their financial reporting, analysis, and 
supporting resources. This market momentum is enhancing the quality of commu-
nication between companies and investors on the financial impacts of sustainability. 
Importantly, this market activity also brings new learning opportunities to SASB. By 
monitoring the use of our standards, we can ensure that the standards meet the 
needs of companies of all sizes, across every industry, and on every continent. We 
also glean new insights from investors, whose strategies span a variety of methodol-
ogies, asset classes, time horizons, and risk appetites. 

Since our first industry working group in 2012, SASB has endeavored to provide 
market-driven solutions to the capital markets’ need for consistent, comparable, and 
reliable sustainability information available to all investors. This objective remains 
core to our mission, and to that end we’re actively engaged in listening to our key 
stakeholders through both formal and informal outreach—most notably through 
our Standards Advisory Group (SAG).

Comprised of an esteemed group of corporate, investment, and other professionals 
with relevant industry or subject-matter expertise, the SAG provides SASB with 
invaluable advice from the leading edge of practice among preparers and users of 
corporate reporting. We want to know: what’s working? What isn’t? What could 
use more clarity? How can SASB better support use? SAG members’ input on tech-
nical matters, implementation considerations, and emerging issues will help us 
ensure SASB standards remain cost-effective for companies and decision-useful for 
investors. Similarly, their broad geographic footprint provides a diversity of regional 
perspectives that will help us maintain a globally applicable set of standards.

As we transition from the release of our industry standards to supporting use and 
implementation, SASB’s mission continues to guide our work. We remain committed 
to the principles that have always underpinned our due process: evidence-based 
research, broad and balanced stakeholder outreach, public transparency, and inde-
pendent oversight. With financial materiality as our north star, SASB aims to ensure 
more sustainable global economies by helping to make capital markets more effi-
cient, informed, and resilient. 

Sincerely,

JEFFREY HALES, PHD 
Chair of the Standards Board

LETTER 
FROM THE 
CHAIR
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SURVEYING THE LANDSCAPE 
Like the world around them, today’s business leaders—and the markets that provide 
their financing—face no shortage of great challenges. Broad macroeconomic 
trends such as population growth, globalization, and technological innovation have 
contributed to environmental, social, and financial impacts as daunting as they are 
unsustainable—climate change, resource scarcity, and rising economic inequality 
among them. Ongoing efforts by governments and civil society are important but 
offer an incomplete solution. Creating a sustainable, robust, and resilient future 
requires not only a globally coordinated effort, but extraordinary financing. By mobi-
lizing capital markets to address these challenges head-on, SASB is helping direct 
trillions of dollars toward more sustainable outcomes in a way that creates value for 
companies, investors, economies, and the world alike.

WHY SASB? WHY NOW?
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BY THE NUMBERS
An increasing share of the 
market cap of S&P 500 
companies is attributable 
to intangible assets. 
Sustainability issues are 
among a variety of factors 
that contribute to this 
increasing gap between book 
and market values.

Source: Ocean Tomo, Intangible Asset 
Market Value Study (March 5, 2015).

Source: UN PRI website, “About the PRI,” 
accessed July 11, 2019.

As a result, a growing number 
of investors are looking 
beyond traditional financial 
statements, as evidenced by 
the rise in signatories to the 
Principles for Responsible 
Investment.
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Source: TCFD, 2019 Status Report (June 2019).

Source: Sustainable Stock Exchange Initiative 
website, “Stock Exchange Guidance on ESG 
Reporting,” accessed July 11, 2019.

And it’s why at least 47 stock exchanges around 
the world—including 8 of the 10 largest by market 
capitalization—have produced guidance to assist 
listed companies with reporting on environmental, 
social, and governance (ESG) matters.
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This is why more than  
785 organizations now 
support the recommendations 
of the Task Force on Climate 
Related Financial Disclosures 
(TCFD).

Research Spotlights the SASB Solution

A growing body of research indicates SASB’s approach to sustainability 
can mobilize an unprecedented amount of financial capital to address 
sustainability challenges. By identifying those areas where the interests 
of companies and their investors are well-aligned with those of broader 
society—in other words, where they can “do good while doing well”—
SASB helps transform global capital markets into powerful and efficient 
forces for good.

For example, research from Harvard Business School has shown the SASB 
approach can help companies enhance business outcomes, including their 
return on sales, sales growth, return on assets, and return on equity, while 
also enjoying improved risk-adjusted shareholder returns.

Meanwhile, Russell Investments found evidence that SASB-focused ESG 
scores are better predictors of market return than more broadly defined 
ESG scores, even after adjusting for known drivers of equity returns.

For more information, see sasb.org/research-on-sasb.

Sources: Khan M., G. Serafeim, and A. Yoon (November 2016). “Corporate Sustainability: First Evidence on Materiality,” 
The Accounting Review, Vol. 91, No. 6, pp. 1697-1724; Emily Steinbarth, Scott Bennett (February 2018). Materiality 
Matters: Targeting the ESG Issues that Impact Performance, Russell Investment Management Ltd.

Today, roughly one of every three dollars 
under professional management globally is 
invested using sustainable strategies—an 
increase of 34 percent in just two years.

Global Sustainable Investment Alliance, 2018 Global Sustainable 
Investment Review (April 2019).

https://www.sasb.org/research-on-sasb/
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INFRASTRUCTURE SECTOR

© 2018 SASB™

Sustainable Industry Classification System™ (SICS™) #IF0000

Prepared by the  

Sustainability Accounting Standards Board®

July 2018 

CODIFIED STANDARD  

sasb.org

WATER UTILITIES
Sustainability Accounting Standard 

SETTING THE STAGE
November 2018 marked a pivotal moment for global capital markets. The codifi-
cation and release of SASB’s 77 industry-specific standards established infrastructure 
that enables a race to the top on sustainability performance, which in turn creates 
mutual benefit for companies, investors, and society at large. Companies have long 
understood that environmental, social, and governance factors can have important 
financial implications, but progress—at both the micro- and macroeconomic levels—
has been hampered by the absence of standardized performance and risk metrics. 
As more companies adopt SASB standards to measure, manage, and report their 
performance on key, industry-specific sustainability factors, the body of financially 
material sustainability information will continue to increase. This, in turn, will usher 
in a new, more robust era of financial management and analysis that unlocks more 
sustainable outcomes.

BY THE NUMBERS
SASB’s standard-setting process is driven by evidence-based technical research, 
detailed input from a broad and balanced set of market participants, and expert-led 
oversight with full transparency and multiple opportunities for public feedback.

CODIFICATION

6 years, 4 months of standard-
setting work

Covering 77 industries across 
11 sectors

Involving input from hundreds 
of Industry Working Group 
members representing $11T 
in market cap and $23.4T of 
assets under management

And deep consultation with 
141 companies, 19 industry 
associations (representing 
hundreds of companies), and 
38 institutional investors

Including 12 public comment 
periods, which elicited 300+ 
comment letters

Requiring 248 technical 
updates to the provisional 
standards before 
codification

Resulting in 6 topics and 14 
metrics, on average, per 
industry

SASB rings the opening bell at NASDAQ. 
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The SASB Standards Advisory Group (SAG)

To ensure the broadest possible applicability and uptake, SASB standards have always been shaped by and 
for the market. With the release of the standards in November 2018, the Standards Advisory Group (SAG) was 
established to help SASB better understand implementation considerations and emerging issues through a 
diverse group of experts whose perspectives represent a wide range of corporate and investment functions 
across a variety of industries, sectors, and geographical regions.

Today, the SAG consists of 174 industry experts from leading companies, investment firms, and third parties 
who advise SASB as it works to improve the quality and comparability of sustainability-related disclosure. 
Representing organizations headquartered in 24 different countries around the world, these members have 
contributed their views to SASB’s analysis of general and industry-specific implementation considerations, SASB 
guidance, and SASB’s standard-setting approach. This feedback ensures SASB’s process and outcomes effectively 
serve the needs of companies and investors, thus positioning the standards to become essential, next-generation 
market infrastructure.

For more information, see sasb.org/provide-feedback/standards-advisory-group/.

SASB rings the opening bell at the London Stock Exchange.
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BY THE NUMBERS
Early adopters of SASB standards include many of the world’s largest companies and 
investors, representing nearly every industry, sector, and geographic region.

79 reporting companies across 19 countries

44 IAG members representing $33T AUM across 11 countries

247,000+ standards downloads by 23,000+ unique  
users in 200+ countries

IMPLEMENTATION

TOPIC ACCOUNTING METRIC CATEGORY UNIT OF MEASURE CODE DATA REFERENCE

MANAGEMENT OF  
CHEMICALS IN 
PRODUCTS

Description of processes to 
maintain compliance with 
restricted substances regulations

Discussion  
and Analysis

N/A CN0501-01 • SBR: Chemistry (Measure: 100% compliance
with NIKE RSL)

• Approach to Chemistry

• Chemistry Playbook

Description of processes to assess 
and manage risks associated with 
chemicals in products

Discussion  
and Analysis

N/A CN0501-02 • SBR: Chemistry (Target: Enable Zero Discharge 
of Hazardous Chemicals)

• Approach to Chemistry

• Chemistry Playbook

RAW MATERIAL 
SOURCING & 
INNOVATION

Discussion of environmental 
and social risks associated with 
sourcing priority materials

Discussion  
and Analysis

N/A CN0501-03 • SBR: Materials (Target: Increase use of more 
sustainable materials in footwear and apparel)

• Sustainable Materials

• Sustainable Materials Principles

Percentage of raw materials third-
party certified to an environmental 
or social sustainability standard, 
by standard

Quantitative Percentage (%)  
by weight

CN0501-04 Materials (FY17)

Cotton 
• Organic: 8%
• Recycled: <1% 
• BCI: 46%

Polyester 
• Recycled: 14%

Corrugate 
• Recycled: 84%

Rubber 
• Environmentally preferred rubber: 98%

Foam 
• Recycled EVA foam: <1%

• SBR: Materials (Target: Increase use of more 
sustainable materials in footwear and apparel)

• Sustainable Materials

• Sustainable Materials Principles

LABOR 
CONDITIONS IN 
THE SUPPLY CHAIN

Percentage of (1) tier 1 suppliers 
and (2) suppliers beyond tier 1 
that have been audited to a labor 
code of conduct, percentage 
conducted by a third-party auditor

Quantitative Percentage (%) CN0501-05 100% of Tier 1 suppliers audited to Code  
of Conduct, which includes environmental  
data collection

• 4% audited by third-party auditor

Suppliers beyond Tier 1 audited to  
Code of Conduct

• N/A. We disclose a number of strategic material
suppliers (Tier 2) on our Manufacturing Map 
along with finished goods factories.

• SBR: Sustainable Sourcing (Target: Source 
100% from factories that meet our definition 
of sustainable)

• NIKE’s Sourcing and Manufacturing Standards

Priority non-conformance rate 
and associated corrective action 
rate for suppliers’ labor code of 
conduct audits

Quantitative Rate CN0501-06 In FY17, 9.1% of audits were rated below  
Bronze (non-conformance)

• SBR: Sustainable Sourcing (Target: Source 
100% from factories that meet our definition 
of sustainable)

• NIKE’s Sourcing and Manufacturing Standards

Discussion of greatest (1) labor 
and (2) environmental, health, and 
safety risks in the supply chain

Discussion  
and Analysis

N/A CN0501-07 • SBR: Issue Prioritization, Sustainable Sourcing 
(Target: Source 100% from factories that meet 
our definition of sustainable)

• Protecting the Environment 

• Making Product Responsibly

ENVIRONMENTAL 
IMPACTS IN THE 
SUPPLY CHAIN

Percentage of (1) tier 1 supplier 
facilities and (2) supplier facilities 
beyond tier 1 with wastewater 
discharge meeting or exceeding 
legal requirements

Quantitative Percentage (%) CN0501-08 In FY17, 72.6% of focus suppliers met NIKE’s 
wastewater quality requirements for textile  
dyeing and finishing processes

• SBR: Chemistry

• Approach to Chemistry

• Chemistry Playbook

Percentage of (1) tier 1 suppliers 
and (2) suppliers beyond tier 
1 who have completed the 
Sustainable Apparel Coalition’s 
Higg Index Facility Module 
assessment or equivalent 
environmental data collection

Quantitative Percentage (%) CN0501-09 100% of Tier 1 suppliers audited to Code  
of Conduct, which includes environmental  
data collection

• 4% audited by third-party auditor

Suppliers beyond Tier 1 audited to  
Code of Conduct

• N/A. We disclose a number of strategic material
suppliers (Tier 2) on our Manufacturing Map 
along with finished goods factories.

• SBR: Sustainable Sourcing (Target: Source 
100% from factories that meet our definition 
of sustainable)

• NIKE’s Sourcing and Manufacturing Standards

SUSTAINABILITY ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD (SASB)

SASB is an independent, private sector standards-setting organization dedicated to enhancing the efficiency of the capital markets by fostering high-quality 
disclosure of material sustainability information that meets investor needs. The table below cross-references the SASB accounting metrics with where that 
information can be found in NIKE’s FY16/17 Sustainable Business Report (SBR) and Sustainability Website.

To learn more, please visit:
FY16/17 Sustainable Business Report: 
sustainability.nike.com/reports

NIKE Sustainability: sustainability.nike.com 

Sustainability Accounting Standards Board

General Mills SASB Reference Table

The Sustainability Accounting Standards Board (SASB) is an independent, standards-setting organization that promotes disclosure of material sustainability information to meet investor 
needs. This table references the Standard for the Processed Foods industry as defined by SASB’s Sustainable Industry Classification System (SICS) and identifies where General Mills 
addresses each topic. Note that some responses may not be fully aligned with SASB’s definition, but represent the content most closely aligned with that indicator. 

Topic SASB accounting metric Category Location or response

Energy Management (1) Total energy consumed, (2) percentage grid electricity, (3) percentage renewable Quantitative Environmental Data Summary, Our Planet

Water Management (1) Total water withdrawn, (2) total water consumed, percentage of each in regions 
with High or Extremely High Baseline Water Stress

Quantitative CDP Water

Number of incidents of non-compliance associated with water quantity and/or 
quality permits, standards, and regulations

Quantitative GRI Index

Description of water management risks and discussion of strategies and practices  
to mitigate those risks 

Discussion and Analysis Water stewardship, CDP Water

Food Safety Global Food Safety Initiative (GFSI) audit (1) non-conformance rate and  
(2) associated corrective action rate for (a) major and (b) minor non-conformances

Quantitative Zero critical non-conformances in FY18

Percentage of ingredients sourced from Tier 1 supplier facilities certified to a  
Global Food Safety Initiative (GFSI) recognized food safety certification program

Quantitative Food safety

(1) Total number of notices of food safety violation received,  
(2) percentage corrected

Quantitative No food safety violations were  
received in FY18

(1) Number of recalls issued and (2) total amount of food product recalled Quantitative Food safety

Health & Nutrition Revenue from products labeled and/or marketed to promote health and  
nutrition attributes

Quantitative Health and wellness

Discussion of the process to identify and manage products and ingredients related 
to nutritional and health concerns among consumers

Discussion and Analysis Health and wellness

Product Labeling & Marketing Revenue from products labeled as (1) containing genetically modified organisms 
(GMOs) and (2) non-GMO

Quantitative We label all of our FDA regulated products 
as either “Produced with” or “Partially 
Produced with Genetic Engineering” if they 
contain more than 0.9% GMO ingredients. 

Number of incidents of non-compliance with industry or regulatory labeling  
and/or marketing codes

Quantitative Responsible marketing

Packaging Lifecycle 
Management

(1) Total weight of packaging, (2) percentage made from recycled and/or renewable 
materials, and (3) percentage that is recyclable, reusable, and/or compostable

Quantitative Climate change - packaging

Discussion of strategies to reduce the environmental impact of packaging 
throughout its lifecycle

Discussion and Analysis Climate change - packaging

Environmental & Social 
Impacts of Ingredient 
Supply Chain

Percentage of food ingredients sourced that are certified to third-party 
environmental and/or social standards, by certification scheme

Quantitative Sustainable sourcing

Suppliers’ social and environmental responsibility audit (1) non-conformance  
rate and (2) associated corrective action rate for (a) major and (b) minor  
non-conformances

Quantitative Supplier responsibility

Ingredient Sourcing Percentage of food ingredients sourced from regions with High or Extremely High 
Baseline Water Stress

Quantitative CDP Water

List of priority food ingredients and discussion of sourcing risks due to 
environmental and social considerations

Discussion and Analysis Sustainable sourcing
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Travelers Sustainability Accounting Standards Board Report 2018 2

TOPIC CODE ACCOUNTING METRIC PAGE REFERENCE

Transparent Information  
& Fair Advice  
for Customers

FN-IN-270a.1 Total amount of monetary losses as a result of legal proceedings 
associated with marketing and communication of insurance 
product-related information to new and returning customers

Page 3

FN-IN-270a.2 Complaints-to-claims ratio Page 3

FN-IN-270a.3 Customer retention rate Page 4

FN-IN-270a.4 Description of approach to informing customers about products Page 5

Incorporation of 
Environmental, Social,  
and Governance Factors in 
Investment Management

FN-IN-410a.1 Total invested assets, by industry and asset class Page 7

FN-IN-410a.2 Description of approach to incorporation of environmental, 
social, and governance (ESG) factors in investment management 
processes and strategies

Page 7

Policies Designed  
to Incentivize  
Responsible Behavior

FN-IN-410b.1 Net premiums written related to energy efficiency and low 
carbon technology

Page 8

FN-IN-410b.2 Discussion of products and/or product features that incentivize 
health, safety, and/or environmentally responsible actions  
and/or behaviors

Page 8

Environmental  
Risk Exposure

FN-IN-450a.1 Probable Maximum Loss (PML) of insured products from 
weather-related natural catastrophes

Page 11

FN-IN-450a.2 Total amount of monetary losses attributable to insurance 
payouts from (1) modeled natural catastrophes and (2) 
non-modeled natural catastrophes, by type of event and 
geographic segment (net and gross of reinsurance)

Page 12

FN-IN-450a.3 Description of approach to incorporation of environmental risks 
into (1) the underwriting process for individual contracts and 
(2) the management of firm-level risks and capital adequacy

TCFD Report

Systemic Risk 
Management

FN-IN-550a.1 Exposure to derivative instruments by category: (1) total potential 
exposure to non-centrally cleared derivatives, (2) total fair value 
of acceptable collateral posted with the Central Clearinghouse, and 
(3) total potential exposure to centrally cleared derivatives

Page 15

FN-IN-550a.2 Total fair value of securities lending collateral assets Page 16

FN-IN-550a.3 Description of approach to managing capital- and liquidity-related 
risks associated with systemic non-insurance activities

Page 16

1The inclusion of information contained in this report should not be construed as a characterization regarding the materiality or financial impact of that information. 
For a discussion of information that is material to Travelers, please see our Annual Report on Form 10-K.

I.  SUSTAINABILTY DISCLOSURE TOPICS & ACCOUNTING METRICS

In addition to providing comprehensive disclosure on our website regarding our approach to value creation, which integrates 
environmental, social and governance factors, The Travelers Companies, Inc. (together with its consolidated subsidiaries, Travelers or 
the Company) is providing the following disclosures, which are aligned with the Sustainability Accounting Standards Board (SASB) 
standards for the insurance industry. Travelers is a leading provider of commercial, personal and specialty insurance products and 
services to businesses, government units, associations and individuals. Because Travelers is a property and casualty insurance company, 
this report does not address any metrics requesting information regarding other types of insurance products (e.g., life insurance).1

                                                                                                                                                                 2018/2019 SASB Disclosure    |    1 

2018/2019 Corporate Responsibility Report 
Sustainability Accounting Standard Board (SASB) Disclosure 
Published: June 2019 
 

Topic Accounting Metric Links/Comments 

Energy 
Management 

Total energy consumed 
Note: GHG emissions are reported in the Corporate Responsibility Report 

Corporate Responsibility Report 
CDP Climate 
10-K 

Percentage of electricity from grid 36.5 percent 

Percentage of electricity from renewable sources 23 percent 
Corporate Responsibility Report 
CDP Climate 

 

 
 

Water 
Management 

Total water withdrawn Corporate Responsibility Report 
CDP Water 

Total water consumed, percentage of each in regions with high or extremely high 
baseline water stress 

CDP Water 

Number of incidents of non-compliance associated with water quantity and/or 
quality permits, standards and regulations 

None 

Description of water management risks and discussion of strategies and practices 
to mitigate those risks 

Corporate Responsibility Report 
CDP Water 
10-K 

 
 

 

Food Safety 

Global Food Safety Initiative (GFSI) audit non-conformance rate and associated 
corrective action rate for major and minor con-conformances 

None 

Percentage of ingredients sourced from Tier 1 facilities certified to a GFSI 
recognized food safety certification program 

100% 
Corporate Responsibility Report 

Number of recalls issued and total amount of food recalled (in metric tons) As reported in the Corporate Responsibility Report, in 
June 2018, Kellogg recalled packages of Kellogg’s Honey 
Smacks® cereal. After an internal investigation of a third-

66

SASB index
For the first time, we are providing a Sustainability Accounting Standards Board (SASB) index that identifies where in this report or in our other publicly available 

disclosures we provide information identified in the Electric Utilities & Power Generators industry standards within the Infrastructure sector. Though we do not 

yet address all metrics included in the standards, we continue to evaluate our future disclosures in light of investor interest in the SASB framework.

Topic Accounting Metric Location/Subsection

Greenhouse Gas 
Emissions & Energy 
Resource Planning

(1) Gross global Scope 1 emissions, percentage covered under (2) emissions-limiting regulations, and (3) emissions-reporting regulations
- CDP: Climate

- Corporate Responsibility Report: Reducing GHG Emissions

Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions associated with power deliveries - CDP: Climate

Discussion of long-term and short-term strategy or plan to manage Scope 1 emissions,
emissions reduction targets, and an analysis of performance against those targets

- Planning for a low-carbon future

- CDP: Climate

(1) Number of customers served in markets subject to renewable portfolio standards (RPS) and (2) percentage fulfillment of RPS target by market - No RPS in Retail Electric states

Air Quality
Air emissions of the following pollutants: (1) NOX (excluding N2O), (2) SOX, (3) particulate matter (PM10), 

(4) lead (Pb), and (5) mercury (Hg); percentage of each in or near areas of dense population

- EEI ESG/ Sustainability Reporting Template

-  Corporate Responsibility Report: Reducing GHG Emissions

-  Toxics Release Inventory

Water 
Management

(1) Total water withdrawn, (2) total water consumed, percentage of each in regions with High or Extremely High Baseline Water Stress
- EEI ESG/Sustainability Reporting Template

- Corporate Responsibility Report: Conserving water

Description of water management risks and discussion of strategies and practices to mitigate those risks - Southern Company Water Action Report

Coal Ash 
Management

Amount of coal combustion residuals (CCR) generated, percentage recycled
- EEI ESG/ Sustainability Reporting Template

- Corporate Responsibility Report: Managing solid wastes

Total number of coal combustion residual (CCR) impoundments, broken down by hazard potential classification and structural integrity assessment

-  Alabama Power CCR Compliance Data and Information

-  Georgia Power CCR Compliance Data and Information

- Mississippi Power CCR Compliance Data and Information

Energy 
Affordability

Average retail electric rate for (1) residential, (2) commercial, and (3) industrial customers - Annual Electric Power Industry Report: Form EIA- 861

Discussion of impact of external factors on customer affordability of electricity, including the economic conditions of the service territory - Annual Report: Form-10k ; pg I-19

Workforce 
Health & Safety

(1) Total recordable incident rate (TRIR) and (2) fatality rate
- EEI ESG/ Sustainability Reporting Template

- Corporate Responsibility Report: Our People/Safety

End-Use Efficiency 
& Demand

Percentage of electric load served by smart grid technology
- Annual Electric Power Industry Report: Form EIA- 861

Customer electricity savings from efficiency measures, by market

Nuclear Safety 
& Emergency 
Management

Total number of nuclear power units, broken down by U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) Action Matrix Column - United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission Action Matrix

Description of efforts to manage nuclear safety and emergency preparedness - Corporate Responsibility Report: Managing solid wastes

Grid Resiliency Number of: (1) residential, (2) commercial, and (3) industrial customers served
-  EEI ESG/ Sustainability Reporting Template

-  Annual Report: Form-10k; pg II-5

Activity Metric Location/Subsection

Combined total electricity delivered to: residential, commercial, industrial, all other retail customers, and wholesale customers - Annual Report: Form-10k; pg II-21

Length of transmission and distribution lines - CDP: Climate

Total electricity generated, percentage by major energy source, percentage in regulated markets - CDP: Climate

Total wholesale electricity purchased - CDP: Climate

Back to contents
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SASB CODE SASB METRIC
RELATED INFORMATION IN  
2018 SUSTAINABILITY REPORT1

IB-550b.1 Percentage of total remuneration that is variable for Material Risk 
Takers (MRTs) 

Our MRT policies and procedures align with regulatory 
principles and requirements, and are overseen by the 
Board Compensation, Management Development and 
Succession Committee, page 34

IB-550b.2 Percentage of variable remuneration of MRTs to which malus or  
clawback provisions were applied 

Our MRT policies and procedures align with regulatory 
principles and requirements, and are overseen by the 
Board Compensation, Management Development and 
Succession Committee, page 34

IB-000.A (1) Number and (2) value of (a) underwriting, (b) advisory and  
(c) securitization transactions 

Underwriting and Advisory volumes, exclusive of 
securitization transactions, page 35 2018 Form-10K

CB-230a.2 Description of approach to identifying and addressing data 
security risks

Overview of our activities regarding data security risk, 
pages 27–28

CB-240a.1 (1) Number and (2) amount of loans outstanding qualified  
to programs designed to promote small business and  
community development

Community Development Finance, pages 22–23

CB-410a.1 Commercial and industrial credit exposure, by industry Institutional Securities Loans and Lending 
Commitments by industry, page 75 2018 Form-10K

CB-410a.2 Description of approach to incorporation of ESG factors in 
credit analysis 

Climate-related scenario analysis pilot in credit risk,  
page 13

CB-000.B (1) Number and (2) value of loans by segment: (a) personal,  
(b) small business and (c) corporate

Small business loans that incorporate sustainability 
factors are discussed in the Community Development 
Finance section, pages 21–22

Our Investment Banking activity, which includes 
corporate lending, is discussed in the Sustainable 
Finance section, pages 15–17

AC-270a.3 Description of approach to informing customers about products 
and services 

Our Fair Marketing guidelines, page 25

AC-410a.1 Amount of assets under management, by asset class, that employ  
(1) integration of ESG issues, (2) sustainability themed investing  
and (3) screening  

Client assets invested on our Morgan Stanley Wealth 
Management Investing with Impact platform, page 19

AC-410a.2 Description of approach to incorporation of environmental, social,  
and governance (ESG) factors in investment and/or wealth 
management processes and strategies

Overview of our Wealth Management and Investment 
Management processes,  pages 19–22

AC-410a.3 Description of proxy voting and investee engagement policies  
and procedures

Overview of Wealth Management and Investment 
Management investor engagement and activities, 
pages 19–20

AC-550a.3 Total exposure to securities financing transactions
 

Total firm gross and net amounts of securities 
financing transactions, pages 119–120 2018 Form-10K

AC-550a.4 Net exposure to written credit derivatives Total firm credit protection sold and purchased,  
pages 115–116 2018 Form-10K

AC-000.A (1) Total registered and (2) total unregistered assets under 
management (AUM)

Total Wealth Management Client Assets and 
Investment Management Assets Under Management 
or Supervision (no registration distinction),  
pages 39 and 44 2018 Form-10K

AC-000.B Total assets under custody and supervision Wealth Management client assets under supervision 
(only), page 39  2018 Form-10K

Emissions Reduction Services &  
Fuels Management

Water Management Services

Total fuel consumed, percentage renewable, percentage used in: 
(1) on-road equipment and vehicles and (2) off-road equipment

Discussion of strategy or plans to address air emissions-related risks, 
opportunities, and impacts

Percentage of engines in service that meet Tier 4 compliance for  
non-road diesel engine emissions

(1) Total volume of fresh water handled in operations, (2) percentage 
recycled

Discussion of strategy or plans to address water consumption and 
disposal-related risks, opportunities and impacts

EM-SV-110a.1 

EM-SV-110a.2 

EM-SV-110a.3

EM-SV-140a.1 

EM-SV-140a.2

Chemicals Management1

Ecological Impact Management2

Workforce Health & Safety

Business Ethics & Payments Transparency

Management of the Legal &  
Regulatory Environment

Volume of hydraulic fracturing fluid used, percentage hazardous

Discussion of strategy or plans to address chemical-related risks,  
opportunities and impacts

Average disturbed acreage per (1) oil and (2) gas well site

Discussion of strategy or plan to address risks and opportunities related 
to ecological impacts from core activities

(1) Total recordable incident rate (TRIR), (2) fatality rate, (3) near-miss fre-
quency rate (NMFR), (4) total vehicle incident rate (TVIR) and (5) average 
hours of health, safety and emergency response training for: (a) full-time 
employees, (b) contract employees and (c) short-service employees

Description of management systems used to integrate a culture of 
safety throughout the value chain and project lifecycle

Amount of net revenue in countries that have the 20 lowest rankings in 
Transparency International’s Corruption Perception Index

Description of the management system for prevention of corruption and 
bribery throughout the value chain

Discussion of corporate positions related to government regulations 
and/or policy proposals that address environmental and social factors 
affecting the industry

EM-SV-150a.1

EM-SV-150a.2

EM-SV-160a.1

EM-SV-160a.2

EM-SV-320a.1

 
 
 
EM-SV-320a.2

EM-SV-510a.1

 
EM-SV-510a.2

EM-SV-530a.1

Critical Incident Risk Management

Activity Metrics

Description of management systems used to identify and mitigate 
catastrophic and tail-end risks

Total number of hours worked by all employees3 

EM-SV-540a.1

EM-SV-000.D

1 Chemicals management was deemed not applicable, as usage of hydraulic fracturing fluid used to open and enlarge fractures within the rock formation is outside of the Company’s operational control.
2 Ecological Impact Management was deemed not applicable, as management of disturbed acreage per oil and gas well site is outside of the Company’s operational control.
3 Number of active rig sites, number of active well sites and total amount drilling performed are not relevant to the Company’s operational control, and have therefore been omitted.
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SUSTAINABILITY  
ACCOUNTING  
STANDARDS BOARD

A collection of corporate reports using SASB  
standards, including Nike, General Mills, Gap Inc., and  
Morgan Stanley; available at sasb.org/company-use

GAP INC. 2017
SASB REFERENCE TABLE

TOPIC

Management 
of Chemicals in 
Product

Environmental 
Impacts in the 
Supply Chain 

Labor Conditions 
in the Supply 
Chain 

ACTIVITY METRIC 

Number of (1) Tier 1 suppliers and (2) 
suppliers beyond Tier 1

Description of processes to maintain 
compliance with restricted substances 
regulations

Discussion of processes to assess and 
manage risks and/or hazards associated 
with chemicals in products

Percentage of (1) Tier 1 supplier facilities 
and (2) supplier facilities beyond Tier 1 in 
compliance with wastewater discharge 
permits and/or contractual agreements

Percentage of (1) Tier 1 supplier facilities 
and (2) supplier facilities beyond Tier 1 
that have completed the Sustainable 
Apparel Coalition’s Higg Index Facility 
Module (Higg FEM) assessment or 
an equivalent environmental data 
assessment 

Percentage of (1) Tier 1 supplier facilities 
and (2) supplier facilities beyond Tier 1 
that have been audited to a labor code 
of conduct, (3) percentage of total audits 
conducted by a third-party auditor

CATEGORY

Quantitative 

Discussion 
and Analysis 

Discussion 
and Analysis 

Quantitative 

Quantitative 

Quantitative 

UNIT OF 
MEASURE

Number 

N/A 

N/A 

Percentage (%) 

Percentage (%) 

Percentage (%) 

CODE

ACCG-AA-
000.A

CG-AA-
250a.1

CG-AA-
250a.2

CG-AA-
430a.1 

CG-AA-
430a.2 

CG-AA-
430b.1

DATA

As of Feb. 3. 2018, (FY’17), we sourced from 855 Tier 1 
branded apparel supplier facilities, defined as direct-
relationship cut and sew facilities and their associated 
embroidery, laundry and screen printing facilities.

We have identified 179 Tier 2 mill suppliers which 
represent about 80% of business volume.

100% of Tier 1 supplier denim laundries have 
wastewater meeting or exceeding legal requirements, 
in accordance with our Water Quality Program.

Supplier Facilities beyond Tier 1
• N/A
By 2020, we expect strategic Gap Inc.-approved 
mill facilities to participate in and report for the 
Sustainable Apparel Coalition (SAC) Higg FEM 3.0 and 
Zero Discharge of Hazardous Chemicals (ZDHC) MRSL 
and Wastewater Guidelines.

100% of Tier 1 suppliers were requested to complete 
the SAC’s Higg Index Facility Module.
• 94% of active Tier 1 branded apparel suppliers 

completed the 2017 data request
Suppliers beyond Tier 1 requested to complete the Higg 
Index Facility Module
• 108 invited Tier 2 mill facilities completed the 2017 

data request

90.4% of Tier 1 branded apparel suppliers were audited 
to our Code of Vendor Conduct during the fiscal year.
• 22% of audits conducted by third-party assessor, 

primarily through ILO Better Work 

REFERENCE

Social: Supply Chain

GSR: Supplier Sustainability (p.26)

GSR: Mills + Laundries (p.43)

Environment: Reducing Chemicals 

GSR: Chemical Management (p.46)

Environment: Reducing Chemicals 

GSR: Chemical Management (p.46)

Environment: Mills + Laundries

GSR: Water Stewardship (p.43)

Measuring Our Progress: 
Environmental

GSR: Water Stewardship (p.43) 

Measuring Our Progress: Working 
Conditions 

Social: Working Conditions

The Sustainability Accounting Standards Board (SASB) is an independent, private sector standards-setting 
organization dedicated to enhancing the efficiency of the capital markets by fostering high-quality disclosure 
of material sustainability information that meets investor needs. This table references the Standard for the 
Apparel, Accessories & Footwear industry as defined by SASB’s Sustainable Industry Classification System 
(SICS) with the location of that information in Gap Inc.’s 2017 Global Sustainability Report (GSR) and 
gapincsustainability.com.

1

 Wells Fargo & Company GRI and SASB Index 1

GRI STANDARD DISCLOSURE 
NUMBER

WELLS FARGO RESPONSE RELATED SASB 
INDICATORS

Name of the 
organization

102-1 Wells Fargo & Company (WFC) 

Activities, brands, 
products, and services

102-2 2018 Annual Report, Pages 284-285 (Wells Fargo & Company) (PDF)   
 
Wells Fargo & Company (NYSE: WFC) is a diversified, community-
based financial services company with $1.9 trillion in assets. Wells 
Fargo’s vision is to satisfy our customers’ financial needs and help 
them succeed financially. Founded in 1852 and headquartered in San 
Francisco, Wells Fargo provides banking, investment and mortgage 
products and services, as well as consumer and commercial finance, 
through 7,800 locations, more than 13,000 ATMs, the internet 
(wellsfargo.com), and mobile banking, and has offices in 37 countries 
and territories to support customers who conduct business in the 
global economy.  With 259,000 full-time equivalent team members, 
Wells Fargo serves one in three households in the United States. Wells 
Fargo & Company was ranked No. 26 on Fortune’s 2018 rankings of 
America’s largest corporations.

Location of headquarters 102-3 420 Montgomery Street 
San Francisco, CA 94104

Location of operations 102-4 2018 Annual Report, Page 285 (Wells Fargo's Extensive Network) 
(PDF)

Ownership and legal 
form

102-5 2018 Annual Report, Pages 284-285 (Wells Fargo & Company) (PDF)
 
2018 Form 10-K, Part I (Item 1 Business) (PDF)

Markets served 102-6 2018 Annual Report, Pages 284-285 (Wells Fargo & Company) (PDF)

Scale of the organization 102-7 2018 Annual Report, Pages 284-285 (Wells Fargo & Company) (PDF)
 
2018 Form 10-K, Part I (Item 1 Business) (PDF)

Information on 
employees and other 
workers

102-8 See total number of team members by employment type and gender 
and team members by region charts following this index.  

GRI and SASB Index 
Our 2018 Corporate Responsibility Report was prepared in accordance with the Global Reporting Initiative 
Standards (GRI) “Core” option and contains many elements of the "Comprehensive" option. This combined 
reporting index includes all the GRI Standards disclosures covered in the report and aligns them with the applicable 
Sustainability Accounting Standards Board (SASB) indicators.

 For SASB indicators in bold type, we believe we have fulfilled or substantially fulfilled the applicable indicator with  
the information provided in the report and/or referenced in this index. SASB indicators in non-bold type are included 
as they relate to the applicable GRI indicator, but we are not necessarily claiming that they have been fulfilled in the 
report and/or this index.

GENERAL DISCLOSURES

BUILDING MOMENTUM
Although the standards were only released in November, a rapidly growing number 
of companies and investors have already begun to incorporate them into their 
reporting and decision-making processes. They include many of the world’s largest 
investors, corporations, and other market participants who recognize that delivering 
shareholder returns and sustainable environmental and social outcomes are not 
mutually exclusive—but rather can be mutually supportive—pursuits. Companies 
are using SASB standards to drive greater transparency, better risk management, 
improved long-term performance, and a stronger, more valuable brand. Investors are 
using them across asset classes to inform their analyses, drive their engagements, 
and better meet their risk and return objectives.  

https://www.sasb.org/company-use/
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The SASB Investor Advisory Group (IAG)

Through their engagements with portfolio companies, investors are an important lever for adoption of the SASB 
standards. In developing the standards, SASB has worked to amplify investors’ voices in the market, and they 
have begun to respond in kind, serving as advocates and ambassadors for SASB’s approach. For example:

•	 The IAG launched a collaborative engagement pilot program in 2018, which expanded to involve the entire 
IAG in 2019. 

•	 Results of the 2018 pilot included SASB disclosure on the investor relations section of a large-cap apparel 
company’s website, as well as the inclusion of SASB metrics in the sustainability and/or integrated reports 
of other high-profile companies in the processed foods, real estate services, and alcoholic beverages 
industries, among others.

•	 Additionally, several IAG members have included references to SASB standards in their proxy voting 
guidelines, open letters to investees, and client communications, including BlackRock, Vanguard, and 
Walden Asset Management (a division of Boston Trust), providing further impetus for corporate uptake.

Having established “proof of concept” with these initial efforts, the IAG will continue to ramp up its efforts—and 
its impact—driving further adoption of the SASB standards and more sustainable outcomes.

For more information, see sasb.org/investor-use/supporters/.

EGON VAVREK / APG (ALL PENSIONS GROUP) • CHRISTIAN KJAER / ATP • OLE BUHL / ATP • MATT CHRISTENSEN / AXA INVESTMENT 
MANAGEMENT • ANNA SNIDER / BANK OF AMERICA MERRILL LYNCH • JENNIFER COULSON / BCI (BRITISH COLUMBIA INVESTMENT 
MANAGEMENT CORPORATION) • MICHELLE EDKINS / BLACKROCK • RAY CAMERON / BLACKROCK • PETER COFFIN / BRECKINRIDGE 
CAPITAL ADVISORS • ROB FERNANDEZ / BRECKINRIDGE CAPITAL ADVISORS • FAITH WARD / BRUNEL PENSION PARTNERSHIP • DAN 
BIENVENUE / CALPERS • BETH RICHTMAN / CALPERS • CHRISTOPHER AILMAN / IAG CHAIR EMERITUS / CALSTRS • KIRSTY JENKINSON 
/ CALSTRS • JOHN STREUR / CALVERT RESEARCH & MANAGEMENT • JOHN WILSON / CALVERT RESEARCH & MANAGEMENT • ROBERT 
W. LOVELACE / CAPITAL GROUP • NATASHA BRAGINSKY MOUNIER / CAPITAL GROUP • BERTRAND MILLOT / CDPQ • BEN LAMBERT 
/ CPPIB • CAROLE LAIBLE / DOMINI IMPACT INVESTMENTS • COREY KLEMMER / DOMINI IMPACT INVESTMENTS • PAM HOLDING 
/ FIDELITY INVESTMENTS • NICOLE CONNOLLY / FIDELITY INVESTMENTS • JULIE MORET / FRANKLIN TEMPLETON INVESTMENTS • 
JOHN GOLDSTEIN / GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT • CATHERINE WINNER / GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT • 
MICHAEL CAPPUCCI / HARVARD MANAGEMENT COMPANY • EOIN MURRAY / HERMES INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT • DR. MICHAEL 
VIEHS / HERMES INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT • AARON MEDER / LEGAL & GENERAL INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AMERICA • 
JOHN HOEPPNER / LEGAL & GENERAL INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AMERICA • CHRISTOPHER P. CONKEY, CFA / MANULIFE 
INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT • MARGARET CHILDE / MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT • TED ELIOPOULOS / MORGAN 
STANLEY INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT • RUI DE FIGUEIREDO / MORGAN STANLEY INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT • JOSEPH V. AMATO 
/ NEUBERGER BERMAN • JONATHAN BAILEY / NEUBERGER BERMAN • ALEX DOÑÉ / NEW YORK CITY RETIREMENT SYSTEMS 
• MICHAEL GARLAND / NEW YORK CITY RETIREMENT SYSTEMS • TOMOAKI FUJII / NISSAY ASSET MANAGEMENT • TOSHIKAZU 
HAYASHI / NISSAY ASSET MANAGEMENT • EIVIND LORGEN / NORDEA ASSET MANAGEMENT • MARJO KOIVISTO / NORDEA ASSET 
MANAGEMENT • WILHELM MOHN / NORGES BANK INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT • CHRISTOPHER SHIPLEY / NORTHERN TRUST 
ASSET MANAGEMENT • BARBARA ZVAN / IAG CHAIR / ONTARIO TEACHERS’ PENSION PLAN • DEBORAH NG / ONTARIO TEACHERS’ 
PENSION PLAN • JOHN SKJERVEM / IAG VICE CHAIR / OREGON STATE TREASURY, INVESTMENT DIVISION • ANNA TOTDAHL / 
OREGON STATE TREASURY, INVESTMENT DIVISION • HANS OP ‘T VELD / PGGM • JELENA STAMENKOVA VAN RUMPT / PGGM • 
GAVIN POWER / PIMCO • DEL ANDERSON / PIMCO • KATHERINE COLLINS / PUTNAM INVESTMENTS • PAUL SCANLON / PUTNAM 
INVESTMENTS • MARGARET STUMPP / QMA (A PGIM COMPANY) • PAT WATRAL / QMA (A PGIM COMPANY) • JESSICA GROUND 
/ SCHRODERS • LYNN BLAKE / STATE STREET GLOBAL ADVISORS • RAKHI KUMAR / STATE STREET GLOBAL ADVISORS • GEORGE 
PARKER / SUSTAINABLE INSIGHT CAPITAL MANAGEMENT • HERSHEL HARPER / UAW RETIREE MEDICAL BENEFITS TRUST • MALCOLM 
GOEPFERT / UAW RETIREE MEDICAL BENEFITS TRUST • BRUNO BERTOCCI / UBS ASSET MANAGEMENT • CHRISTOPHER GREENWALD 
/ UBS ASSET MANAGEMENT • GLENN BOORAEM / VANGUARD • MARC LINDSAY / VANGUARD • HEIDI SOUMERAI / WALDEN ASSET 
MANAGEMENT • HANNAH SKEATES / WELLS FARGO ASSET MANAGEMENT • JESSICA MANN / WELLS FARGO ASSET MANAGEMENT •  

DAVID ZELLNER / WESPATH INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT • NICHOLAS ABEL / WESPATH INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT

https://www.sasb.org/investor-use/supporters/
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SUPPORTING THE MARKET
As uptake expands, so does the market’s need for support. SASB provides a variety 
of tools, resources, events, and programs to help companies, investors, and other 
market participants more effectively integrate financially material sustainability 
factors into their work. From licensing SASB intellectual property for use in products 
and services, to membership programs and publications, SASB offers a full suite 
of first- and third-party solutions to help companies, investors, and other market 
participants drive performance in the key areas where the interests of business and 
the interests of broader society are well aligned.

BY THE NUMBERS
Interest in SASB’s first- and third-party resources is growing along with uptake of 
the standards.

97+ Alliance members from 11 countries

(70% SALES GROWTH IN 2018)

47+ licensing organizations

(~400% LICENSING REVENUE GROWTH IN 2018)

25% Navigator subscriber growth in 2018

$1.6M in sales 

(60% YEAR-OVER-YEAR GROWTH IN 2018)

1,000+ FSA registrants from 40+ countries

2,000+ downloads of the TCFD 
Implementation Guide, jointly published 
with CDSB

906 industry-specific questions in the 
updated Engagement Guide

107 attendees discussing the future of ESG 
at an Alliance event bringing companies 
and investors together

2018 Symposium  
(sold out with overflow attendance)

40% REVENUE GROWTH FROM SPONSORSHIPS

114 events at which SASB, staff, and  
Foundation board members spoke or 
presented in 2018

RESOURCES

SASB Symposium

MOV I NG
 the MARKET
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SASB Licensing Partners

As global capital markets increasingly depend on high-quality sustainability information, 
SASB standards increasingly represent vital market infrastructure to help both 
companies and investors. Through their use of the standards and related SASB resources 
in licensed products and services, a growing number and variety of organizations are 
helping build that infrastructure.

Since 2014, the SASB Foundation has licensed its standards and related tools and 
resources to power a range of investment strategies, platforms, and products, including 
investment strategies from Columbia Threadneedle and Russell Investments, services 
from Truvalue Labs and Clarity, and indices developed by ET Index. Two recently licensed 
products—State Street Global Advisors’ R-Factor scoring system and Truvalue Labs’ 
artificial intelligence-driven data platform—represent next-generation ESG tools that 
both capture and incentivize company performance on financially material ESG factors.

Mission-aligned products such as these enable market participants to allocate capital in 
line with SASB’s approach to sustainability and thus help realize the SASB Foundation’s 
vision: An investment universe in which a shared understanding of sustainable business 
practices enables market participants to make more informed decisions that drive 
improved long-term outcomes for not only companies and investors, but also for the 
global economy and society at large.

For more information, see sasb.org/license-sasb-framework/.

SASB analyst Gail 
Glazerman speaks 
at the CFA Institute 
conference.

SOME OF  
OUR PARTNERS: 

©
SA

SB

https://www.sasb.org/license-sasb-framework/
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ACHIEVING IMPACT
In 2018, ESG went mainstream. With the codification of SASB standards, the 
market’s embrace of the recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-related 
Financial Disclosures (TCFD), and the ever-increasing assets under management by 
signatories to the PRI, sustainability is now a core consideration among investors and 
corporations alike. Nevertheless, work remains to be done to harmonize a complex 
reporting landscape, evolve the standards alongside markets, enhance disclosure 
quality, and achieve meaningful impact.

BY THE NUMBERS
Widespread adoption of SASB standards will unleash competitive forces to tackle 
sustainability challenges, forging a future in which successful businesses and 
sustainable outcomes are mutually reinforcing.

Percentage of companies that say they are likely  
to adopt SASB standards

	 USA  57%	 EU  83%
Source: The Sustainability Imperative: Business and Investor Outlook –  

2018 Bloomberg Sustainable Business & Finance Survey

SASB is 1 of 8 members in the  
Corporate Reporting Dialogue

981 metrics reviewed for alignment with other frame-
works as part of the Better Alignment Project

SASB is 1 of 12 members of the  
Impact Management Project’s Structure Network, 
a collaborative effort to provide complete rules of 
the road for impact measurement, management, and 
reporting

71% of SASB metrics directly map to  
Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) 

Source: Calvert Research Management, “Incorporating the UN Sustainable Development Goals into ESG 
Investment Research via SASB Tools,” SASB ESG Integration Insights (2017 Omnibus Edition)

OUTLOOK
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How SASB Unlocks Impact

SASB’s underlying theory of change is simple: what gets measured gets managed. Companies have a vested 
financial interest in driving progress on the sustainability issues that are likely to affect their bottom line. If 
they don’t, their competitors will, creating a “race to the top” that will benefit not only companies and their 
shareholders, but society more broadly.

For example, energy consumption can indirectly contribute to climate change and air pollution because 
it involves the combustion of fossil fuels by utilities. Meanwhile, energy consumption also accounts for 
approximately 9 percent of revenue in the Metals & Mining industry, where operating profit margins average 
about 10 percent. Energy management is therefore a business-critical issue for companies in the industry—and 
an example of how financially material sustainability factors can help align the interests of business, investors, 
and society at large.

Applying statistical techniques to the 30 percent of metals and mining companies that currently report energy 
management metrics, SASB created a normal distribution of results for all companies in the industry. The results 
indicate that if companies in the bottom half of performance improved their energy consumption per dollar of 
revenue to the industry average, not only would they significantly improve their operating margins, they would 
facilitate the following environmental impacts:

•	 120,000 MWh reduction in energy use per year (equivalent to 10% of U.S. coal-fired power generation)

•	 35,000 tons reduction in direct CO2 emissions per year (equivalent to 
emissions associated with 7.5 million passenger vehicles)

•	 1.2 billion cubic meters of reduced water usage per year (equivalent 
to average daily U.S. water use of 8.8 million homes).

Through transparency and quantitative rigor, SASB standards can move industry performance, impacting 
business, society, and the planet.

For more information, see sasb.org/standards-overview/materiality-map/.

 

April 12, 2017, with March 29, 2018 revisions -  90 

 

Enbridge | 2016 CSR & Sustainability Report 

caused by first-, second- and third-party pipeline damages; fugitive customer meter set leaks; fugitive station 

component leaks; fugitive leaks due to plastic pipe permeability; emissions that result from various types of venting 

(including emissions that result from purging during energizing; purging during abandonment; venting during integrity 

work; venting during station maintenance, and pneumatic equipment venting); and emissions from processing natural 

gas. 
 
With regard to GPP, there is some overlap between the emissions that we report here, in this section of the report, 

and the releases that we report in the Maintaining the Fitness of Enbridge’s Systems & Detecting Leaks section of 

this report, as some of GPP’s emissions are accidental releases. We do not have data that show the extent of the 

overlap. For more information, please see the Maintaining the Fitness of Enbridge’s Systems & Detecting Leaks 

section of this report.  

 
For all of our business segments, we have estimated most of our GHG emissions volumes using emissions factors.  

 
In 2015, our Enbridge-wide Scope 1 GHG emissions decreased about 3.5 percent from their 2014 levels for the 

following reasons: GPP experienced lower throughput and gas processing volumes in 2015 (GPP’s Scope 1 

emissions are directly proportional to its system throughput and gas processing volumes); LP stopped using the 

diesel-fueled stand-by generation it relies on when grid power is not yet available for new pumps, and reduced its use 

of the natural gas-fired pipeline heater it uses at its Superior Terminal; GD used less natural gas at its underground 

storage operations and for its distribution line heaters. GD’s fuel use varies depending on the amounts of natural gas 

it injects or removes from its storage facility.  

 
Enbridge’s Scope 1 GHG Emissions, 2013 – 2015, by Business Segment 

 
The following table shows our Scope 1 GHG emissions between 2013 and 2015 for our GPP, LP, GD, Corporate 

Services and GPT business segments:  

 
Scope 1 (t CO2e) 2013 2014 2015 

Liquids Pipelines 1  121,0002,3  56,0003  44,0002  

Gas Pipelines & Processing   2,273,000 1,899,000 1,822,000 

Gas Distribution4  301,000 328,000 339,000 

Green Power & Transmission 100 3005  2005  

Corporate Services 2,000 2,000 1,000 

Total – Scope 1 2,698,000 2,285,000 2,206,000 

 

1  Our Scope 1 estimates for our LP business segment in the U.S. include vehicle emissions and fugitive emissions from 

terminal operations (methane and carbon dioxide), as well as stationary combustion-related emissions from pumps, 

heaters, emergency generators and vapor destruction units. Currently, our Scope 1 emissions inventory does not include 

emissions that result from space heating, water heating and other small combustion sources. These emissions sources, 

however, are minor in terms of our LP U.S.’s total Scope 1 and 2 emissions profiles. 

2  In 2013, we used sulfur hexafluoride (SF6
)  as a tracer gas when we conducted hydrostatic pressure testing of Line 14. The 

CO2e of the test (84,800 t) encompasses about 74 percent of LP’s 2013 Scope 1 total. No hydrostatic pressure testing 

requiring tracer gas was done in 2014. In 2015, a hydrostatic pressure test was conducted using a tracer gas (Tracer-R), 

which has a lower GWP than SF6 and which resulted in GHG emissions of 8200 t CO2e. 

3  2014, LP’s Scope 1 GHG emissions are higher than usual due to its temporary use of diesel-fueled generation for new 

pumps. We have adjusted the 2013 data to account for the temporary diesel-fueled generation that also took place in 

2013. 
4   GD’s Scope 1 GHG emissions include reportable natural gas releases that were caused by first-, second- and third-party 

damages, as well as emissions caused by planned venting. We report the number of first-, second- and third-party 

damages in more detail in the Maintaining the Fitness of Enbridge’s Systems & Detecting Leaks section of this report. In 

addition to the emissions caused by first-, second- and third-party damages, and by planned venting, GD’s Scope 1 GHG 
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SHARING OUR VISION
SASB is extremely grateful to the following group of committed organizations 
and individuals with the vision to support standards that enhance the efficiency of 
capital markets and powerfully address the sustainability challenges of our time. 
Their generosity fuels the research and outreach needed to develop and maintain 
our standards and to engage with global capital markets, helping corporations 
and investors focus on financially material sustainability issues. We are pleased to 
recognize this distinguished group upon whose shoulders SASB stands. With their 
support, we work to enhance the efficiency, stability, and resilience of global capital 
markets so that they may support sustainable, inclusive economic development.

DONORS & SUPPORTERS 
2012 – 2018

Contributors at 
$1,000,000 and above

Bloomberg Philanthropies

Deloitte ^

Ernst & Young

Gordon and Betty Moore 

Foundation

KPMG

PwC ^

Robertson Foundation

The David & Lucile Packard 

Foundation

The F.B. Heron Foundation ^

The Ford Foundation

The Rockefeller Foundation

TomKat Foundation

Zegar Family Foundation

Other Generous 
Foundation Contributors

Ainslie Foundation

Anonymous

Doris Duke Charitable Foundation

Eileen Fisher Community 

Foundation

GE Foundation

Jeremy Grantham Foundation 

for the Protection of the 

Environment

Macquarie Group Foundation

Metanoia Fund

Rockefeller Brothers Fund

Rockefeller Philanthropy Advisors

Surdna Foundation

TAUPO Fund

The Fink Family Foundation

The Investment Fund for 

Foundations (TIFF)

The Kresge Foundation

The McKnight Foundation

The San Francisco Foundation

Other Generous 
Corporations and 
Organizations

Ascent Partners Group Limited *

ATP *

Bank of America Merrill Lynch

Bloomberg LP ^

Blue Harbor Group *

Breckinridge Capital Advisors ^

CalSTRS *

CalPERS *

Calvert Investments *

Capital Group International *

CBRE Group Inc. *

Charles Schwab Investment 

Management *

Copper Rock Capital Partners, 

LLC *

CPA Canada * 

Canada Pension Plan Investment 

Board *

Crowe Horwath LLP

Domini Impact Investments, 

LLC *

European Investment Bank *

Equilibrium Capital *

Fannie Mae *

Franklin Templeton Investments *

Generation Investment 

Management LLP

Glass Lewis *

Glenelg Partners

Greentech Capital Advisors *

Harvard Management Company, 

Inc. *

IFM Investors *

Illinois State Treasury *

Inherent Group LLC *

JANA Partners LLC

Jarislowsky Fraser Ltd.

KKR & Co LP ^

SUPPORT
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Legal & General Investment 

Management *

Macquarie Investment 

Management *

Maryland State Retirement 

Agency *

Materiality Consulting LLC *

Moody's Investors Service *

Morgan Stanley ^

Morningstar Inc. *

Network for Good

Neuberger Berman *

NRG Energy Inc. *

Ontario Teachers' Pension Plan *

Payden & Rygel Investment 

Management *

Protiviti Consulting *

Putnam Investments *

Rhode Island Office of the General 

Treasurer *

Rockefeller Capital Management *

Sage Advisory Services *

Sands Capital Management *

Schroders *

Scott Energy Technologies LLC *

State Street Corporation *

Sustainable Insight Capital 

Management *

Swell Investing *

Temasek International *

Terra Alpha Investments *

The Travelers Companies, Inc. *

TIAA Global Asset Management *

UBS Asset Management *

Vermont State Treasurer *

Waste Analytics *

Wells Fargo Asset Management *

Wespath Investment Management *

Workiva *

Other Generous Individual 
Contributors

Alan Beller

Rudolph Bless

Rosario Capponi

Audrey Choi

Peter Coffin

Tim Coville

Michael Dieschbourg

Robert Eccles

Jack Ehnes

Victoria Emerick

Alessia Falsarone

Anne Marie Fell

Susan Fishman

Michele Foster

Daniel Goelzer

Kenneth Goldman

Janine Guillot

Stephen Haggerty

Jeffrey Hales

Dan Hanson

Norman and Sandra Hempling

Michele Henney

Robert and Louise Herz

Andrew Hill

Robert Hirth 

Erika Karp

John Katovich

Steve Lydenberg

Shawn Lytle

Suz MacCormac

Bridget Malone

David MacLean

James Martin

James McIntire

Brigham McNaughton

Kenneth Melhman

Clara Miller

Jennifer Mitchell

Kelly Moylan

Kevin Parker

Aulana Peters

William Tyler Peterson

Arnie Pinkston

Joel and Sandra Pollack

Francisca Quinn

Curtis Ravenel

Tom Riesenberg

Jean Rogers

Mary Schapiro

Anne Sheehan

Megumi Shiose

Robert Steel

Ronald Stern and Elisse Walter

Amira Strasser

The Catherine Odelbo Philanthropic 

Fund

The Gunders Philanthropic Account 

Fund

The Spinella Welch Family Charitable 

Fund

John Truzzolino

Laura Tyson

Jack Wadsworth

Ed Waitzer

Edward White

Jay Willoughby

ALLIANCE SUPPORTERS 
JANUARY – MAY 2019

Other Generous 
Corporations and 
Organizations

Aon *

Arisaig Partners *

AVAIO Capital *

Barrow Hanley *

BC Investment Management Corp. *

BlackRock Inc. *

Brunel Pension Partnership *

Caisse de dépôt et placement du 

Québec *

CarVal Investors *

Cliffwater *

Danske Bank Markets *

ESG Global Advisors Inc. *

Federated Investors Inc. *

Fidelity Investments *

Hermes Investment Management *

ISS ESG *

Loomis Sayles *

Manulife Asset Management *

Nissay Asset Management *

Norges Bank Investment 

Management *

Northern Trust Asset Management *

Oregon State Treasurer *

Pennsylvania Treasury *

PGGM Investments *

Quantitative Management 

Associates *

Rivel Research Group *

S&P Global Inc. *

State Street Global Advisors *

The Carlyle Group *

The Office of New York City 

Comptroller *

UAW Retiree Medical Benefits 

Trust *

United Nations Joint Staff Pension 

Fund *

Vanguard Group *

Walden Asset Management / Boston 

Trust & Investment Management 

Company *

^  Designates support as both a generous 
donor and Alliance member 

* Designates support as an Alliance member 
exclusively
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MANAGEMENT’S 
DISCUSSION & 
ANALYSIS

FINANCIALS 2018 SUMMARY

The mission of the Sustainability Accounting Standards Board (SASB) Foundation is 
to establish industry-specific disclosure standards across environmental, social, and 
governance topics that facilitate communication between companies and investors 
about financially material, decision-useful information. This mission is accomplished 
through a rigorous process that includes evidence-based research and broad, 
balanced stakeholder participation.

The SASB Foundation supports the work of the SASB Standards Board, engages 
with SASB Alliance members, and provides the market with education and 
resources that advance the use of SASB standards and the field of sustainability 
accounting.

The organization operates in three program areas:

•	 Standard Setting

•	 Outreach and Adoption

•	 Education and Resources

We fund our work through three sources: philanthropic grants, market support 
grants, and earned income from products and membership fees. In recent years we 
have focused on increasing funding from diversified, annually recurring sources to 
reduce our reliance on one-time capital. 2018 saw strong growth in earned income 
and market support grants, which raised the percentage of budget support from 
annually recurring revenues from 45% in 2017 to 75% in 2018.

Net assets increased by $6.8 million but the organization moved from a $2.3 million 
operating surplus to a $1.3 million operating deficit for 2018. This shift was due 
to a significant portion of 2018 cash funding coming from multi-year grants that 
began in July and for which only half a year of revenue could be recognized. We 
expect to return to an operating  surplus in 2019. Despite the accrual-based oper-
ating loss, net cash increased again in 2018, by $387K, and the organization ended 
the year with a $1.9 million cash balance.

While there are still concerning aspects of the organization’s financial condition (a 
portion of the annual budget must be raised from unpredictable, one-time philan-
thropic grants and there is a $3 million, zero-interest loan due at the end of 2020), 
we are advancing our mission and making significant progress toward a sustaining 
financial model.
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Foundation Grants 3,131,334

Corporation Grants 3,275,000

Individual Donations 106,000

In-Kind Contributions 552,716

Earned Income 1,586,367

Other Income 1,296

Prior Year Cash Carryover 1,553,779

Total 10,206,492

Standards 4,099,675

Outreach 905,940

Education & Partnerships 1,073,538

G&A 1,217,517

Fundraising 726,465

Total 8,023,136

9%

31%

15%

11%

5%

 32%

51%

1%

14%

16%

Sources of Funds 2018 (cash basis)

Uses of Funds 2018 (cash basis) 

15%
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FINANCIALS

FINANCIAL RESULTS

SASB’s financial statements are presented according to U.S. GAAP standards and reflect the specific reporting require-
ments of not-for-profit organizations. The following discusses highlights of SASB’s activities and financial position as 
presented in the accompanying audited financial statements.

2018 Revenue: Earned Income Products
Revenue recognized from earned income is presented on 
the Statement of Activities and totaled $1.36 million in 
2018 vs $757K in 2017. Revenue recognition lags actual 
product sales, since the service period for many products 
covers 12 months and goes into the next fiscal year.

Sales grew significantly in 2018, totaling nearly $1.6 
million (vs. $1 million in 2017). The growth is due to 
several factors:

•	 Increasing interest in SASB, as the November 2018 
standards codification approached, which spurred 
organizations to license SASB standards and to 
educate their staff 

•	 Increased staffing for outreach to market partici-
pants, including educating them on SASB offerings

•	 A focus on Alliance Membership and Licensing 
(and a bundled offering of the two) as key tools 
for organizations to educate their staff and incor-
porate the standards into their commercial work 

2018 Sales 2017 Sales

Education $1,175,387 $841,884

FSA Exam (Levels I & II) $184,445 $163,190

SASB Symposium $389,485 $320,290

SASB Alliance $584,300 $339,470

Publications $17,157 $18,934

Resources $140,964 $140,964

Navigator $72,700 $54,870

Licensing Partnerships $338,280 $86,094

Total $1,586,367 $982,848

Education

Fundamentals of Sustainability 
Accounting (FSA)
The FSA credential educates professionals on the newly 
evolving practice of sustainability accounting, helping them 
to see the role it plays in investment analysis, sustainability, 
accounting, and law. The credential is earned by passing 
both Level I (principles) and Level 2 (practices) exams. The 
Level I exam was released in fall 2015 and Level II was 
released in fall 2016. By the end of 2018, over 800 candi-
dates had registered for the FSA program, over 600 people 
had taken the Level I exam to begin the credential process, 
over 300 had taken the Level II exam, and 250 passed both 
exams and were awarded the credential.

FSA test takers live in 54 countries, with two-thirds in the 
US, 10% in Canada and the rest living around the world. 
Their professional mix at the end of 2018 was:

	 21%	 Consulting
	 34%	 Investor
	 13%	 Corporate Sustainability
	 7%	 Finance/Accounting
	 5%	 Professor
	 5%	 Student
	 15%	 Other

26% of test takers are less than 7 years into their career, 
50% are 7-20 years into their career, and 24% are 20+ 
years into their career.

SASB Symposium
SASB held its third annual conference, the SASB 
Symposium, at Fordham University on December 4. The 
conference again sold out, with nearly 400 attendees 
from 14 countries working in the fields of sustainability, 
investment management, accounting and corporate 
reporting, and law and policy. The speakers were 50% 
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women and 24% from outside the U.S. There were 17 
organizations sponsoring the Symposium, including 5 
new sponsors.

SASB Alliance Membership Program
The SASB Alliance provides a forum for education and 
community among organizations and professionals that 
wish to help shape and advance the field of sustainability 
accounting. The number of organizational members grew 
dramatically in 2018, ending the year at 59 members, up 
from 36 in 2017. 2018 was also the first year that orga-
nizations had an opportunity to renew their membership. 
94% of organizational members renewed, indicating 
strong value from the program. The number of individual 
members also increased, up to 80 members from 68 in 
2017. 

Publications Library
Since its launch in late 2016, the Publications Library 
has housed all SASB publications but distinguished 
between those that could be accessed for free and 
those that required an annual Library subscription fee. 
While interest in SASB’s work has grown, the number of 
paying subscribers has remained low. As such, in 2019 
we plan to retire the Publications Library as a standalone 
product offering and instead repurpose the content as 
free downloads or as components of our other programs, 
depending on the content. We believe providing content 
in this way will better support our goal of promoting 
greater understanding and use of SASB standards, while 
not significantly impacting SASB revenue.

Resources

Licensing
Licensing allows organizations to use SASB’s intellectual 
property (IP) to develop a robust and standardized ESG 
data architecture for use in their commercial activities, 
including research, processes, services, and products. 
SASB offers organizations the opportunity to license our 
Sustainable Industry Classification System (SICSTM), SASB 
standards, and related data. Customers have licensed 
SASB’s IP for integration into data platforms and investor 
tools, investible products, sustainability management and 
reporting software, and services that make use of, or 
reference, SASB’s work. There was a dramatic growth in 
licensing in 2018, with sales nearly four times the 2017 
level.

Navigator
The SASB Navigator is a subscription-based research and 
information tool providing easy navigation and search-
ability for all of the SASB topics, metrics, and technical 
protocols as well as the evidence of materiality for each 
topic and analysis of disclosure quality of those topics 
in four years’ worth of annual SEC filings for 4,400+ 
companies. The number of users with access to the 
Navigator grew dramatically in 2018 with most Alliance 
members gaining access, sometimes with hundreds of 
staff members.

2018 Revenue: Grants
Total grant commitments grew significantly in 2018, 
with $14.5 million committed versus just $6.5 million 
committed in 2017. Near $12 million of the total was tied 
to multi-year grants, so 2019 commitments are expected 
to be below this high 2018 total. 

Grant contributions are either motivated primarily by 
philanthropic considerations (i.e., the social outcomes 
enabled by SASB standards) or primarily by business 
considerations (i.e., SASB standards improve the business 
conditions in which market participants operate). 
Therefore, SASB segments its grant-seeking by philan-

thropic grants and market support grants. 

2018 Revenue: Philanthropic Grants
In 2018, SASB enjoyed support from a broad base of phil-
anthropic funders. Individual donors and private foun-
dations associated with the SASB Foundation board of 
directors remain our strongest source of funding, totaling 
approximately $3 million in 2018. Individual gifts came 
largely from the SASB Foundation board, although other 
individual contributors include SASB staff, SASB Alliance 
members, and other individuals who support SASB’s 

mission.

2018 Revenue: Market Support Grants
The majority of new grant commitments in 2018 came 
from market participants, in particular firms in the 
accounting and auditing profession. While the accounting 
profession has supported SASB in past years, 2018 
marked a broadening of support to additional firms and 
an increased level of funding from each firm. The new 
level of support began in mid-2018, so the revenue 
recognized for the year on an accrual basis is less than the 
total cash support. This is the main factor for the accrual 
based operating loss in 2018. SASB expects to have an 
operating surplus in 2019 and beyond, with market 
support grants making up over a third of revenues.
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FINANCIALS

2018 Expenses
Program expenses include the staff and vendor costs 
associated with Standard Setting, Outreach and 
Adoption, and Education and Resources. In addition, 
these program expenses include an allocation of 
shared services costs for direct support of these activ-
ities (e.g., marketing and communications, tech-
nology, occupancy, etc.).

General and administrative expenses represent the 
unallocated portion of shared services costs as well 
as un-allocable costs, such as expenses associated 
with the Foundation Board of Directors and purely 
corporate expenses (HR, finance, insurance, etc.).

2018 expenses increased to $8.4 million from $7 
million in 2017. This reflects a planned increase in 
expenses after a deliberately constrained budget in 
2017. The 2018 expense base was much more in line 
with the 2016 total of $8.7 million.

Key components of the expense increase were:

•	 More robust staffing than 2017, but still lean 
at an average of 34 FTEs through the year

•	 Transition costs related to staffing changes

•	 A significant consulting engagement on SASB’s 
global strategy and positioning

•	 A redesign and refresh of the sasb.org website

Expenses 2018 2017

Program Expenses 75% 81%

G&A 15% 13%

Fundraising 10% 6%

2018 2017

2018 2017

2018 2017

2018 2017

44%29%

75%

80%

81%

2018

2018

2017

2017

19%

10%

8%

6%

8%

15%

5%
6%

13%

Philanthropic Grants 
Market Support Grants
In-kind Contributions
Earned Income

Program Expenses 
G&A
Fundraising

Sources Of  
Operating Revenue

2018 2017

Philanthropic Grants 44% 80%

Market Support Grants 29% 5%

In-kind Contributions 8% 6%

Earned Income 19% 8%

Comparison with Prior Year
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OUTLOOK FOR 2019
While funding is often challenging  for organizations 
setting voluntary standards, SASB expects to build on 
its past success and have a strong 2019. We expect 
to reach a projected 85% of budget coverage from 
annually recurring cash revenues vs. 75% in 2018. 
Absent significant changes in SASB’s operational scope 
and expense, we expect to achieve self-sustaining 
annual revenues within the next few years. The organi-
zation should also return to operating surpluses on an 
accrual basis, given that we will be able to recognize a 
full year of revenues from the multi-year market support 
grants that were first committed in mid-2018.

2019 Priorities
SASB has three major priorities for 2019:

•	 Promoting investor and corporate use of the 
codified standards

•	 Responding to global interest in the standards

•	 Continuing and accelerating progress toward 
diverse and sustaining revenues

Promoting investor and corporate 
use of the codified standards

In 2019 SASB will continue to engage investors and 
license SASB standards for integration in their work. 
Through the Investor Advisory Group, SASB will motivate 
50+ specific investor engagements with corporations to 
ask them to use the standards.

SASB’s Research staff will continue to engage corpo-
rations on the standards, but those conversations are 
shifting from being largely about feedback on the 

standards to a focus on implementation questions. 
We are also reaching corporations through individual 
outreach, engagement with trade associations, and 
appearances at key conferences. The 2019 focus is on 
encouraging and supporting corporate use of the stan-

dards for public reporting to investors.

Responding to global interest in the standards

Nearly 50% of standards downloads come from outside 
the US as market participants worldwide recognize that 
the SASB standards, because they are industry-based and 
not country-based, have utility across the globe. Half of 
the companies reporting SASB topics and metrics are 
from outside the US. SASB has added a non-US director 
to the Foundation board and is cultivating non-US 
candidates for both boards. While all full-time staff are 
US-based, SASB has a network of contractors and collab-
orating organizations elsewhere that help inform and 
shape our work. We continue to consider the best ways 
to support global use of the standards. 

Achieving diverse and sustaining revenues

The organization continues a strong focus on increasing 
the portion of the budget that comes from annual, 
sustaining revenues that are raised from a diverse set of 
funders and customers, which minimizes dependence 
on any one source. After achieving 75% of budget 
coverage from annual funding sources in 2018, SASB 
expects to reach 85% from annual funding sources in 
2019— continuing the  significant and important shift we 
achieved in 2018.

FINANCIAL POSITION

Net assets increased by $6.8 million, rising from $487K to $7.3 million, including a $400K increase in cash balance and a 
$3.9 million increase in grants receivable. Loans payable remained at $3 million (zero interest loans due December 31, 2020) 
and current liabilities increased by $422K, primarily due to an increase in earned income booked but not yet recognized 
($245K) and the implementation of the new lease accounting standard ($201K).
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CHALLENGES AND OPPORTUNITIES

Fundraising

Raising philanthropic dollars is challenging for any orga-
nization, and SASB’s market orientation makes it less 
known and less understood within traditional philan-
thropic circles. In addition, SASB is no longer a new orga-
nization, of the type that attracts general operating 
support grants as startup capital. At this point in SASB’s 
life cycle, philanthropic gifts are smaller and more often 
directed to specific projects and opportunities. 

Corporate grants, especially from the accounting and 
auditing profession, have become a significant source 
of annual funding, representing one-third of the annual 
budget. Other corporate support takes the form of 
corporate purchases of SASB products and resources, and 
we are working to build those revenues.

Attracting and Retaining Staff

Achieving the SASB mission requires a highly capable 
and committed staff. SASB has continued to attract 
a talented staff and has worked to retain them in the 
face of the scarce resources and changing conditions 
common to ambitious startup enterprises. 2018 was a 
challenging year, with a great amount of work going 
into two major efforts: 1) codifying the standards, 
and 2) updating our position and messaging to reflect 
the global relevance of SASB standards and making 
clear SASB standards are intended for corporations to 
communicate material sustainability information to 
investors regardless of disclosure location. The workload 
was significant as the staffing remained modest.

We must guard against overwork that could weaken 
retention of key staff. At the same time, SASB’s 
successes and market momentum have given it a high 
profile and a strong reputation, which attracts top-tier 
talent for open positions. We have added new talent to 
our existing staff, which creates a team with a blend of 
experience and fresh thinking and perspectives.

Conflict of Interest

As an independent, non-partisan standard setter, SASB 
must conduct its work with the highest integrity, in ways 
that avoid both conflicts of interest and the appearance of 
such conflicts. Our two-tier governance structure, which 
has The SASB Foundation delegating standard setting 
authority to the independent operations of the SASB 
Standards Board, helps to ensure the insulation of standard 
setting activities from funding considerations. 

Confidentiality and Information Security

SASB stakeholders entrust SASB with the information 
SASB needs to understand an issue from multiple views 
and create good, balanced standards. To maintain 
this trust, SASB and its stakeholders must both be 
clear when comments and feedback are meant for 
private advice or the public record, and its systems and 
processes should support that separation. In addition, 
systems must remain secure, with SASB identifying 
and mitigating risk factors. SASB continues to monitor 
processes and systems to ensure the tightest possible 
management of data and information.

FINANCIALS
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & AUDITOR’S NOTES

As of December 31 2018 2017

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1,940,834 1,553,779

Accounts, grants, and contributions receivable 3,768,402 1,085,943

Prepaid expenses and other assets 248,256 181,726

Total current assets 5,957,492 2,821,448

Noncurrent Assets

Grants and contributions receivable, net 5,481,592 1,569,144

Equipment, leaseholds, and trademarks 103,731 170,795

Right of use asset - premises 1,052,784

Other Assets 64,350 42,650

Total noncurrent assets 6,702,457 1,782,589

Total assets 12,659,949 4,604,037

Liabilities

Current Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 221,039 254,542

Unearned income 500,305 255,493

Deferred rent liability 18,467

Lease payable - current portion 201,177

Accrued payroll liabilities 616,844 588,620

Total current liabilities 1,539,365 1,117,122

Noncurrent Liabilities

Loan payable 3,000,000 3,000,000

Lease payable - noncurrent portion 851,607

Total noncurrent liabilities 3,851,607 3,000,000

Total liabilities 5,390,972 4,117,122

Net Asset

Without donor restriction (3,489,294) (2,163,072)

With donor restriction 10,758,271 2,649,987

Total net assets 7,268,977 486,915

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 12,659,949 4,604,037

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

As of December 31 2018 2017

Net assets without donor restrictions

Revenue and support

Foundation grants 2,181,000 1,066,999 

Corporation grants 113,275

Individual donations 77,448 176,865 

In-kind contributions 552,716 568,880 

Earned income 1,365,066 756,549 

Other income 1,296 16,168 

Net assets released from restrictions

Corporation grants 1,920,829 475,000

Foundation grants 891,667 6,184,359

Individual donations 10,000

Total net assets released from restrictions 2,822,496 6,659,359 

Total net assets without donor restrictions 7,113,297 9,244,820 

Expenses

Program expenses 6,375,100 5,662,979 

General and administrative 1,236,085 935,650 

Fundraising 828,334 382,040 

Total expenses 8,439,519 6,980,669

Increase (decrease) in net assets  
without donor restrictions

(1,326,222) 2,264,151

Net assets with donor restrictions

Foundation grants 200,000 6,245,000 

Corporation grants 10,775,000

Changes in discount on long-term receivables (44,220) (29,651) 

Net assets released from restrictions (2,822,496) (6,659,359)

Increase (decrease) in net assets with  
donor restrictions 

8,108,284 (444,010) 

Increase (decrease) in net assets 6,782,062 1,820,141

Net (deficit) assets at beginning of year 486,915 (1,333,226)

Net assets at end of year 7,268,977 486,915

FINANCIALS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & AUDITOR’S NOTES
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended December 31 2018 2017

Operating activities

Increase (decrease) in net assets 6,782,062 1,820,141 

Adjustments to reconcile to cash provided by oper-
ating activities

Depreciation and amortization 88,025 88,025 

Change in discount on long-term receivables 44,220 29,651 

Changes in:

   Accounts, grants, and contributions receivable (6,639,127) (1,603,754) 

   Prepaid expenses and other assets (66,530) (118,440) 

   Other assets (21,700) -

   Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (33,503) (204,131) 

   Unearned income 244,812 201,477

   Deferred rent liability (18,467) (4,468)

   Accrued payroll liabilities 28,224 188,087 

      Cash provided by (used for) operating activities 408,016 396,588 

Investing activities

   Acquisition of equipment, leaseholds, and trademarks (20,961) -

   Recognition of right of use asset - premises (1,052,784) -

      Cash used for investing activities (1,073,745) -

Financing Activities

    Lease payable 1,052,784 -

      Cash provided by financing activities 1,052,784 -

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 387,055 396,588 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,553,779 1,157,191 

   Cash and cash equivalent at end of year 1,940,834 1,553,779 

Additional cash flow information:

State registration taxes paid 150 150

Interest and finance charges paid 4,693 2,211

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & AUDITOR’S NOTES
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Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2018 and 2017 

1. Organization
Previously registered as the Sustainability Accounting 
Standards Board before changing its name in 2017, the 
SASB Foundation (SASB) is a 501(c)(3) non-profit organi-
zation incorporated in California in 2011.

SASB sets industry-specific standards for corporate 
sustainability disclosure, with a view towards ensuring 
that disclosure is material, comparable, and deci-
sion-useful for investors.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation 

The financial statements of SASB have been prepared on 
the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with U.S. 
generally accepted accounting principles ("US GAAP").

Basis of Presentation 

Financial statement presentation follows the recommen-
dations of the Financial Accounting Standards Board in 
its Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 958.205, 
Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit 
Entities. Under ASC 958.205, SASB is required to report 
information regarding its financial position and activities 
according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net 
assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently 
restricted net assets. 

Measure of Operations

The statements of activities reports all changes in net 
assets, including changes in net assets from operating 
and nonoperating activities. Operating activities consist 
of those items attributable to SASB's ongoing oper-
ations and interest and dividends earned on invest-
ments. Nonoperating activities are limited to resources 
that generate return from investments and other activ-
ities considered to be of a more unusual or nonrecurring 
nature.

Comparative Financial Information

The accompanying financial statements include 
certain prior-year summarized comparative infor-
mation in total but not by net asset class. Such infor-
mation does not include sufficient detail to constitute 
a presentation in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America 
(GAAP). Accordingly, such information should be read 
in conjunction with our audited financial statements for 
the year ended December 31, 2017, from which the 
summarized information was derived.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

SASB's cash consists of cash on deposit with banks. 
Cash equivalents represent money market funds or 
short-term investments with original maturities of three 
months or less from the date of purchase.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject SASB to 
concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash and 
cash equivalents and investments. SASB maintains its cash 
and cash equivalents in various bank accounts that, at 
times, may exceed federally insured limits. SASB manages 
deposit concentration risk by placing cash and money 
market accounts with financial institutions believed by us 
to be creditworthy.

To date, SASB has not experienced losses in any of these 
accounts. Credit risk associated with accounts receivable 
and promises to give is considered to be limited due to 
high historical collection rates and because substantial 
portions of the outstanding amounts are due from 
Board members and foundations supportive of SASB’s 
mission.

Receivables and Credit Policies

Accounts receivable consist primarily of receivables from 
earned revenues. SASB determined that no allowance 
for doubtful uncollectible accounts receivable is needed 
based on historical experience and, an assessment of 

FINANCIALS
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economic conditions, and a review of subsequent collec-
tions. Accounts receivable are written off when deemed 
uncollectible.

Grants and Contributions Receivable

SASB records contributions receivable that are expected 
to be collected within one year at net realizable value. 
Contributions receivable expected to be collected in 
future years are initially recorded at fair value using 
present value techniques incorporating risk-adjusted 
discount rates designed to reflect the assumptions 
market participants would use in pricing the asset. 
In subsequent years, amortization of the discounts 
is included in contribution revenue in the statement 
of activities. We determine the allowance for uncol-
lectible receivables based on historical experience and, 
an assessment of economic conditions, and a review 
of subsequent collections. Contributions receivable are 
written off when deemed uncollectible.

Equipment, Leasehold Improvements,  
and Trademarks

SASB records equipment additions at cost, or if donated, 
at fair value on the date of donation. Depreciation 
and amortization are computed using the straight-line 
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets 
ranging from 3 to 5 years, or in the case of capitalized 
leased assets or leasehold improvements, the lesser 
of the useful life of the asset or the lease term. When 
assets are sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost and 
related depreciation or amortization are removed from 
the accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is included 
in the statements of activities.

Costs of maintenance and repairs that do not improve 
or extend the useful lives of the respective assets are 
expensed currently. SASB reviews the carrying values 
of property and equipment for impairment whenever 
events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value 
of an asset may not be recoverable from the estimated 
future cash flows expected to result from its use and 
eventual disposition. When considered impaired, an 
impairment loss is recognized to the extent carrying 
value exceeds the fair value of the asset. SASB has 

determined that no long-lived assets were impaired 
during the year ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, 
respectively.

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received 
to sell an asset in the principal or most advantageous 
market for the asset in an orderly transaction between 
market participants on the measurement date. Fair value 
should be based on the assumptions market participants 
would use when pricing an asset. US GAAP establishes a 
fair value hierarchy that prioritizes investments based on 
those assumptions.

The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to 
quoted prices in active markets (observable inputs) and 
the lowest priority to an entity's assumptions (unob-
servable inputs). SASB groups assets at fair value in 
three levels, based on the markets in which the assets 
and liabilities are traded and the reliability of the 
assumptions used to determine fair value. These levels 
are:

Level 1

Unadjusted quoted market prices for identical assets or 
liabilities in active markets as of the measurement date.

Level 2

Other observable inputs, either directly or indirectly, 
including:

• Quoted prices for similar assets/liabilities in active 
markets;

• Quoted prices for identical or similar assets in 
non-active markets;

• Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable 
for the asset/liability; and,

• Inputs that are derived principally from or corrobo-
rated by other observable market data.
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Level 3

Unobservable inputs that cannot be corroborated by 
observable market data.

In some cases, the inputs used to measure the fair value 
of an asset or a liability might be categorized within 
different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those 
cases, the fair value measurement is categorized in its 
entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as 
the lowest level input that is significant to the entire 
measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular 
input to entire measurement requires judgment, taking 
into account factors specific to the asset or liability. The 
categorization of an asset within the hierarchy is based 
upon the pricing model of the asset and does not neces-
sarily correspond to our assessment of the quality, risk or 
liquidity profile of the asset or liability.

Unearned Income

Unearned income represents funds received in advance for 
annual membership and licensing fees which will not be 
earned until the subsequent fiscal year.

Net Assets

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based 
on the existence or absence of donor or grantor imposed 
restrictions. Thus, net assets and changes therein are clas-
sified and reported as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

Net assets available for use in general operations and 
not subject to donor (or certain grantor) restrictions. The 
governing board has the ability to designate, from net 
assets without donor restrictions, net assets for an oper-
ating reserve and board-designated endowment, and it 
has opted to do so as of December 31, 2018.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets subject to donor- (or certain grantor-) imposed 
restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are 
temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the 
passage of time or other events specified by the donor. 
Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, 

where the donor stipulates that resources be main-
tained in perpetuity. Gifts of long-lived assets and gifts 
of cash restricted for the acquisition of long-lived assets 
are recognized as revenue when the assets are placed in 
service. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when 
a restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time 
has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the 
resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both.

Revenue and Revenue Recognition

Contributions are recognized when cash, securities or 
other assets, an unconditional promise to give, or noti-
fication of a beneficial interest is received. Conditional 
promises to give are not recognized until the condi-
tions on which they depend have been substantially met. 
When applicable, revenue earned under a contractual 
arrangement (an “exchange transaction”) is recognized 
when earned and therefore measured as services are 
provided.

Program service fees and payments under cost-reim-
bursable contracts received in advance are deferred to 
the applicable period in which the related services are 
performed or expenditures are incurred, respectively.

Contributions received are recorded as net assets without 
donor restrictions or net assets with donor restric-
tions, depending on the existence and/or nature of 
any donor-imposed restrictions. Contributions that are 
restricted by the donor are reported as an increase in 
net assets without donor restrictions if the restriction 
expires in the reporting period in which the contribution 
is recognized.

Donated Services and In-Kind Contributions

Volunteers contribute significant amounts of time to our 
program services, administration, and fundraising and 
development activities; however, the financial statements 
do not reflect the value of these contributed services 
because they do not meet recognition criteria prescribed 
by generally accepted accounting principles. Contributed 
goods are recorded at fair value at the date of donation.

FINANCIALS
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Functional Expenses

The costs of providing program and other activities have 
been summarized on a functional basis in the statements 
of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allo-
cated among services and supporting services benefited. 
Such allocations are determined by management on an 
equitable basis. A majority of expenses (such as salaries 
and wages, legal and professional, etc.) have been allo-
cated based on time and effort using SASB’s payroll allo-
cations. Other expenses (depreciation and amortization, 
insurance, and occupancy) have been allocated on head-
count at either SASB or the SASB San Francisco office.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity 
with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates, and those differ-
ences could be material.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications of amounts previously reported 
have been made to the accompanying financial state-
ments to maintain consistency between periods 
presented. The reclassifications had no impact on previ-
ously reported net assets.

Income Taxes

SASB is organized as California nonprofit corporation and 
has been recognized by the IRS as exempt from federal 
income taxes under IRC Section 501(a) as organizations 
described in IRC Section 501(c)(3), qualify for the chari-
table contribution deduction under IRC Sections 170(b)
(1)(A)(vi) and (viii), and has been determined not to be 
private foundations under IRC Sections 509(a)(1) and (3), 
respectively. SASB is annually required to file a Return of 
Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form 990) with 
the IRS. In addition, the entities are subject to income 
tax on net income that is derived from business activ-
ities that are unrelated to their exempt purposes. SASB 

files an Exempt Organization Business Income Tax Return 
(Form 990-T) with the IRS to report its unrelated business 
taxable income, if any.

SASB has received notification from the Internal Revenue 
Service and the State of California that it qualifies for 
tax-exempt status under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code and Section 23701d of the California 
Revenue and Taxation Code. The exemptions are subject 
to periodic review by the federal and state taxing author-
ities and management is confident that SASB continues 
to satisfy all federal and state statutes in order to qualify 
for continued tax exemption status.

Recent and Relevant Accounting Pronouncements

The following pronouncements became effective for fiscal 
years beginning subsequent to December 15, 2017:

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-
Profit Entities (Topic 958) – Presentation of Financial 
Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The update 
addresses the complexity and understandability of net 
asset classification, deficiencies in information about 
liquidity and availability of resources, and the lack of 
consistency in the type of information provided about 
expenses and investment return. SASB has adjusted the 
presentation of these statements accordingly.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases 
(Topic 842) Accounting for Leases, which requires lessees 
to recognize leases on-balance sheet and disclose key 
information about leasing arrangements. Topic 842 
was subsequently amended by ASU No. 2018-01, 
ASU No. 2018-10, and ASU No. 2018-11. This new 
pronouncement is effective for fiscal years beginning 
after December 15, 2019, but SASB has elected early 
implementation.

The new standard establishes a right-of-use model (ROU) 
that requires a lessee to recognize a ROU asset and lease 
liability on the statements of financial position for all 
leases with a term longer than 12 months. Leases are 
required to be classified as finance or operating, with 
classification affecting the pattern and classification of 
expense recognition in the statements of activities and 
changes in net assets.
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In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-15, 
Presentation of Financial Statements—Going Concern 
(Subtopic 205-40) Disclosure of Uncertainties about an 
Entity’s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern, which 
requires an organization’s management to evaluate 
whether there are conditions and events, considered 
in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about an 
entity’s ability to continue as a going concern within 
one year after the date that the financial statements are 
issued (or within one year after the date that the financial 
statements are available to be issued, when appli-
cable). As of May 31, 2019 (the date of the Independent 
Auditors’ Report), SASB management has made this eval-
uation and has determined that SASB has the ability to 
continue as a going concern.

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents of $1,940,834 and 
$1,553,779 at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respec-
tively, consist of funds on deposit in multiple bank 
accounts. Checking account balances of $406,946 and 
$346,079 at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respec-
tively, do not bear interest. Savings account balances of 
$1,533,888 and $1,207,700 at December 31, 2018 and 
2017, respectively, bear interest at the rate of 0.04% 
to 0.11% per annum, respectively. Certain amounts on 
deposit exceed federally insured balances. SASB attempts 
to limit its credit risk associated with cash and cash 
equivalents by utilizing well capitalized and highly-rated 
financial institutions.

4. Grants and Pledges Receivable
Grants and pledges receivable of $9,249,994 and 
$2,655,087 at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respec-
tively, consist of amounts due from foundations, corpo-
rations, and individual donors. As of December 31, 
2018, management considers all receivables to be fully 
collectible and has therefore not established an estimated 
allowance for uncollectible amounts.

Bad debt expense amounted to $8,329 and $24,904 for 
the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respec-
tively. Grants and pledges receivable are expected to be 
collected as follows:

2018 2017

Year ending December 31, 2018 - 1,085,943

Year ending December 31, 2019 3,768,402 968,333

Year ending December 31, 2020 3,408,334 483,333

Year ending December 31, 2021 1,150,000 150,000

Year ending December 31, 2022 1,000,000 -

Total grants and pledges 
receivable

9,326,736 2,687,609

Less: Amounts due  
within one year

(3,768,402) (1,085,943)

Less: Unamortized discount (76,742) (32,522)

Grants and pledges receivable 
long term (net of discount)

5,481,592 1,569,144

Grants and pledges receivable due in more than one year 
are reflected at the present value of estimated future 
cash flows using a discount rate of 1.4%per annum. 
The discount related to the present value calculation is 
accreted back into income over the estimated collection 
period of the grants and pledges receivable.

5. Liquidity
SASB regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its 
operating needs and other contractual commitments, 
while also striving to maximize the safeguarding of its 
available funds. SASB has various sources of liquidity at 
its disposal, including cash and cash equivalents and the 
future collection of receivables.

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that 
is, without donor or other restrictions limiting their use, 
within one year of the balance sheet date, comprise the 
following:

FINANCIALS
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2018 2017

Cash and cash equivalents 1,940, 834 1,553,779

Accounts, grants, and contribu-
tions receivable (current portion)

3,768,402 1,085,943

Less: amounts not available  
to be used within one year:  

Net assets with donor  
restrictions for programs

- -

Financial assets available to meet 
general expenditures over the 

next twelve months

5,709,236 2,639,722

SASB receives a substantial amount of support by way 
of restricted contributions. Because donor restrictions 
require resources to be used in a particular manner or in 
a future period, SASB must maintain sufficient resources 
to meet those responsibilities to its donors. Thus, financial 
assets may not be available for general expenditure 
within one year. As part of SASB’s liquidity management, 
it has a policy to structure its financial assets to be 
available as its general expenditures, liabilities, and other 
obligations become due.

6. Equipment, Leaseholds, and Trademarks
Property and equipment consist of the following at 
December 31: 

2018 2017

Leasehold improvements 324,808 324,808

Equipment and furnishings 20,961 -

Trademark 71,884 71,884

Less: accumulated depreciation 
and amortization

(313,922) (225,897)

103,731 170,795

Depreciation and amortization expense amounted to 
$88,025 for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 
2017, respectively. There were no dispositions during the 
years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017. 

7. Right of Use Asset and Leases
In accordance with ASU 2016-02, Leases, SASB is required 
to reflect the present value of future operating lease 
payments (discounted at an appropriate borrowing rate) as 
a “Right of Use” asset and a corresponding lease liability. 
Accordingly, SASB has recorded a total lease liability in the 
amount of $1,052,784 (split between current amount of 
$201,177 and noncurrent amount of $851,607) and a 
corresponding right of use asset for the premises in the 
amount of $1,052,784. 

SASB leases corporate office space in San Francisco 
under a multi-year operating lease agreement from an 
unrelated third party with an expiration date of May31, 
2023. The monthly base rent as of December 31, 2018 
is $19,478 per month and is subject to a 3% increase 
annually every June 1. Office rent expense amounted to 
$218,025 and $220,999 for the years ended December 
31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Future minimum lease 
payments as of December 31, 2018 are as follows: Year 
ending December 31, 2019: $249,289; and Year ending 
December 31, 2020: $264,957; Year ending December 
31, 2021: $272,906; Year ending December 31, 2022: 
$281,093; and Year ending December 31, 2023: 
$118,561.

8. Advertising and Marketing
Advertising and marketing costs are expensed as 
incurred. Advertising and marketing expenses amounted 
to $10,916 and $22,424 for the years ended December 
31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and are reflected on 
the statement of functional expenses.

9. Contributed Support
During the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, 
SASB was the recipient of a substantial amount of in-kind 
contributions. SASB was the beneficiary of pro-bono 
research, professional services, and certain tangible items 
in connection with its operational activities. In accordance 
with ASC 958.605.30-11, Not-for-Profit Entities Revenue 
Recognition – Gifts in Kind, SASB has determined that 
the estimated value of these items for the years ended 
December 31, 2018 and 2017 amounted to $552,716 
and $568,880, respectively, and such amounts have been 
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reflected as in-kind contributed income on the statements 
of activities and changes in net assets and offsetting 
in-kind expenses of $552,716 and $568,880, respectively, 
on the statement of functional expenses.

10. Commitments and Contingencies
In the normal course of business there are outstanding 
various commitments and contingent liabilities, such 
as commitments to enter into contracts, which are not 
reflected in the financial statements. Such commitments 
and contingencies also include risks associated with 
various economic and operating factors, which include 
(a) Grant restrictions and donor conditions which obligate 
SASB to fulfill certain requirements as set forth in grant 
instruments, (b) Funding levels which vary based on 
factors beyond the SASB’s control, such as generosity of 
donors and general economic conditions, (c) Employment 
and service agreements with key management and oper-
ating personnel, and (d) Financial risks associated with 
funds on deposit at bank accounts. Certain of the grants 
and contracts (including current and prior costs) are 
subject to audit, adjustment, and final acceptance by the 
granting agencies.

Management believes that such commitments, contin-
gencies and risks will not have a material adverse effect on 
the financial statements. Accordingly, no accrual for esti-
mated losses for any of the matters noted above has been 
made in the financial statements as of December 31, 2018 
and 2017.

11. Accrued Payroll and Related Benefits
Financial statement presentation follows the recommen-
dations of ASC 710.25, Compensated Absences. Under 
ASC 710.25, SASB is required to record a liability for the 
estimated amount of for future employment obligations. 
Employees are permitted to accrue a specific number of 
hours of vacation which is payable upon termination of 
the employee. Annual leave accruals are recorded in the 
financial statements as an accrued liability on the state-
ments of financial position. Accrued payroll liabilities 
amounted to $616,844 and $588,620 at December 31, 
2018 and 2017, respectively, and are reflected on the 
statements of financial position.

12. Loan Payable and Related 
Party Transactions
Loan payable of $3,000,000 at December 31, 2018 
and 2017 represents a noninterest-bearing loan from 
Bloomberg Philanthropies to be repaid as SASB raises 
sufficient funds from its contributed income activities 
which management believes will occur during the year 
ending December 31, 2020. Michael Bloomberg has 
control over decisions at Bloomberg Philanthropies and is 
the Chairman Emeritus of the Board at SASB. There was 
no interest expense for the years ended December 31, 
2018 and 2017.

13. Net Assets

Unrestricted Net Assets 

Unrestricted net deficit of ($3,489,294) and ($2,163,072) 
at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, represents 
the cumulative net deficits from operating activities since 
the organization’s inception. The Board of Directors may 
elect certain unrestricted balances to be set aside as 
Board-designated funds, with future changes subject to 
approval by the Board. There were no Board-designated 
funds at December 31, 2018 and 2017.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets 

Temporarily restricted net assets are summarized as 
follows as of December 31: 

2018 2017

Deloitte & Touche LLP 2,020,847 395,842

Ernst & Young 1,062,500 -

Ford Foundation 116,666 150,000

Grantham Foundation - 25,000

KPMG 1,666,666 -

PriceWaterhouseCoopers LLP 4,500,000 -

Robertson Foundation 666,667 1,000,000

Rockefeller Brothers Fund 41,667 91,667

Zegar Family Foundation 750,000 1,000,000

Board Pledges 10,000 20,000

Unamortized discount on  
long-term receivables

(76,742) (32,522)

Total temporarily restricted net assets 10,758,271 2,649,987

FINANCIALS
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Restricted contributions to temporarily restricted net assets 
amounted to $10,975,000 and $6,245,000 for the years 
ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Net 
assets released from restrictions amounted to $2,822,496 
and $6,659,359 for the years ended December 31, 2018 
and 2017, respectively. These amounts were transferred 
from temporarily restricted net assets to unrestricted net 
assets on the statements of activities and changes in net 
assets.

14. Retirement Plan
SASB offers employees the opportunity for participation 
in a salary reduction retirement plan (the “Plan”) qual-
ified under Internal Revenue Code Section 401(k). The 
Plan provides employees with the opportunity to defer 
a portion of their salary subject to annual statutory 
limitations. Employees must meet certain age and work 
requirements in order to be eligible to participate in the 
Plan. The Plan provides for discretionary employer contri-
butions which amounted to $305,789 and $282,500 for 
the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respec-
tively. Employer contributions are subject to a vesting 
schedule in accordance with Internal Revenue Service 
regulations.

15. Fair Value Measurements
Composition of certain assets utilizing fair value measure-
ments at December 31, 2018, is as follows: 

Totals Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Grants and 
pledges 

receivable 

$9,249,994 - $3,768,402 $5,481,592

Prepaid 
expenses and 

other assets 

$248,256 - - $248,256

Totals $9,498,250 - $3,768,402 $5,729,848

Composition of certain assets utilizing fair value measure-
ments at December 31, 2017, is as follows: 

Totals Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Grants and 
pledges 

receivable 

$2,655,087 - $1,085,943 $1,569,144

Prepaid 
expenses and 

other assets 

$181,726 - - $181,726

Totals $2,836,813 - $1,085,943 $1,750,870 

Fair value measurements establish a fair value hierarchy 
that prioritizes the input used to measure fair value. 
This hierarchy consists of three broad levels: (a) Level 
1 measurement reflects the value of the investments 
at quoted prices in active markets for identical assets, 
generally without any adjustments, (b) Level 2 assets and 
liabilities are valued based on "observable inputs" other 
than quoted active market prices, including quoted prices 
for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted 
prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive 
markets, and interest rates and yield curves, and (c) Level 
3 assets are valued based on “unobservable inputs," such 
as a company’s own estimates and pricing models. All 
level 3 assets identified above are based on historical cost 
basis figures.

16. Subsequent Events
In compliance with ASC 855, Subsequent Events, SASB 
has evaluated subsequent events through May 31, 2019, 
the date the financial statements were available to be 
issued and, in the opinion of management, there are no 
subsequent events which need to be disclosed.

17. Operating Deficit and Going Concern
SASB has developed resources, publications, and 
education programs which generate earned income, 
contributing to our diversified funding model and 
supporting our independence as a standard setter. SASB 
has experienced real growth in earned income. Recorded 
sales amounted to $1,365,066 in 2018, $756,549 in 
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2017, and $352,742 in 2016. We are proud of the 
offerings we support and the communities we’ve created 
with our Fundamentals of Sustainability Accounting (FSA) 
program, SASB Symposium, licensing agreements, SASB 
Navigator, SASB Library, and SASB Alliance.

Market support grants from corporations provide another 
pillar in SASB’s sustainable revenue model. 2018 saw 
great increases in this year, with substantial multi-year 
commitments of $11.5 million pledged from the “Big 4” 
accounting firms and the first annual installments totaling 
$3.5 million were received.

The remaining pillar in SASB’s business model is annual 
philanthropy from foundations, individuals, and SASB’s 
board of directors. 2018 funding from these sources was 
similar to 2017.

In total, annual recurring revenues from these three pillars 
of support grew from covering 45% of the budget in 
2017 to 80% of the budget in 2018. The remainder of the 
budget is covered by one-time capital gifts. SASB is striving 
to reach self-sufficiency from annual recurring revenues 
within the next few years.

SASB closed 2018 with a strong cash balance of $1.9 
million. Expenses for the full year were just under $8 
million (excluding in-kind goods and services), against a 
Board-approved budget of $8.2 million. Despite strong 
support from the accounting profession and strong 
growth in earned income, SASB recorded a decrease in 
net assets without donor restriction of $1.3 million. This is 
primarily due to timing issues with revenue recognition of 
$3.5 in grants from the accounting profession.

Recognition of these gifts began in the second half of the 
year, with only a portion of the dollars collected in 2018 
recognized as revenue on an accrual basis. Additionally, 
there is a lag between closing earned income sales and 
recognition of the associated revenue, as our licensing 
and membership contracts are recognized over a 12 
month period. Therefore, the growth in earned income 
sales was not fully reflected in the revenue recognized on 
an accrual basis in calendar year 2018.

FINANCIALS
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT  
ON FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITY  
AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
The SASB Foundation’s management is responsible 
for preparing the organization’s financial statements 
and ensuring the accuracy of the information in 
this report. The statements have been prepared 
according to US GAAP. Management also 
establishes and maintains the systems for financial 
reporting and internal controls designed to ensure 
the completeness, accuracy, and integrity of 
financial reporting.

The SASB Foundation’s Board of Directors, 
through the Audit Committee and the Finance 
Committee, oversees the organization’s financial 
and accounting policies, policies and procedures for 
internal controls, and its independent audits. The 
organization’s auditors render an objective, outside 
opinion on the financial statements each year, and 
they have direct access to discuss matters with 
the Audit Committee, both with and without the 
presence of management.

The Foundation’s internal controls are designed 
to provide reasonable assurance that the financial 
statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the organization as of 
December 31, 2018.

Matthew Welch 
SASB Foundation President
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